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Corporate Information
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Group Structure
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Financial Highlights
RUECE T

Major Financial Indicators and Ratios
FRMB R R R

For the year ended 31st March
HEZA=+—HILFE

% changes

2024 2023 increase (decrease)
1123 —E=F Epalsd-t)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %2 OR)
FHET FET
Operating results REXE
Revenue g 340,579 410,421 (17.0)
Gross profit ES 89,491 106,083 (15.6)
Operating profit B A 10,264 13,557 (24.3)
Net profit w7 1,751 5,269 (66.8)
HK cents HK cents %
B4l (Il
Per share data BREH
Loss per share TR EE (0.2) 1,150
Total dividend per share TR L -
Net assets per share BREEFE 86.3 (3.5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FERT FHT
Financial position B RSk
Total assets BEBE 273,883 320,093 (14.4)
Net assets BESE 166,648 172,674 (3.5)
Financial ratio B #% b R
Current ratio (Times) BN R (fF) 1.9 15.8
Quick ratio (Times) RENL R (fF) 0.6 16.7
Gross margin (%) EFZ (%) 25.9 15
Net gearing ratio (%) FEEB G E%) 29 (14.8)
Days %
H
Turnover ratio A =R
Inventory turnover FEEE 213 75
Debtors turnover JE U BR iR B 43 (18.6)
Creditors turnover FEfTBR A& 41 (12.2)
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Financial Highlights
RUECE T

For the year ended 31st March &= = A=+—HILFE

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %)  Revenue by Business Segments (by %)

Fic b I o3 B 2 W 4 ($2 A 43 FLBER ) FEB B2 W (KA 4 ER)

© Hong Kong &8 45% 4 Electronic and Electrical Trading Business &-F * ERTIHFEE XS 66%
© Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) S At [& (B78FRIN) 17% 4 Computer Business B J& 275 19%
@ South Africa FI5F 35% © Cosmetic and Online Retail Business bt it Fe 48 =6 275 15%
 Europe BUM 2%
# Others A fthith= 1%
Revenue Profit (Loss) Attributable to Shareholders
L& e S I A 6 A (s L)

HK$ in million HK$ in million

BEAT TEET

900 15

109 132
10
600 5
461 456 o 0
410 ' | '
5 0.4
300 341 (0.4) 09)
210 (5.7)
-15
0 -20

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Shareholders’ Equity Earnings (Loss) per Share — Basic
Ji& S RE i 5 &R (18 ) — B2 AR
HKS in million HK cents
BEST gl

160 7 6.1 6.6
6
137 5
125 123 4
I 13 ;
1
0
A 4
80 2 ' (0.2)
2 2se) 25)
1 .
7
8
0 10
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT B AR

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2024 (the “Year Under Review"),
the Group recorded a turnover of around HK$341 million, representing a
decrease of about 16.8% from approximately HK$410 million recorded in
the last year. Gross profit decreased by about 16% from approximately
HK$106 million last year to around HK$89 million this year, while the
gross profit margin increased by about 0.4% from 25.9% to 26.3%. The
Group recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$10.3 million (31st
March 2023: approximately HK$13.6 million). The loss attributable to
shareholders was approximately HK$4.9 million (31st March 2023: loss of
approximately HK$0.3 million). This represented loss per share of around
HK$0.025 (loss per share of around HK$0.002 as at 31st March 2023). The
Board has resolved that subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, a final dividend
of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share shall be declared for the year ended
31st March 2024, totally HK$1 million to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on 20th August 2024.
The final dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on 29th August 2024.
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CEOQ’s Statement
AT B AR

During the Year Under Review, the Group continued to focus on its three
core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment under the brand of
mesicon (the “Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the Computer
Business which includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and
smartphone accessories under the brand of L:3VideoCom (the “Computer
Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer products and
consumer products under the brand of @ (the “Computer Distribution
Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business mainly under
the brand of Wishh! and 222 During the Year Under Review, the Group’s
turnover derived from the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business
decreased by approximately 18.3% to about HK$223 million from
approximately HK$273 million last year. Turnover from the Computer
Business decreased by approximately 15% to about HK$68 million from
approximately HK$80 million last year. Turnover from the Cosmetic and
Online Retail Business (the “Cosmetic and Online Retail Business”)
decreased by approximately 12.3% to about HK$50 million from
approximately HK$57 million last year.

For the Year Under Review, the Group’s total operating expenses
decreased by approximately 16.3% to around HK$82 million (31st March
2023: about HK$98 million), among which the distribution and selling
expenses were approximately HK$29 million which have decreased by
about 6.5% from HK$31 million recorded last year. During the Year Under
Review, the general and administrative expenses decreased by about
20.9% to around HK$53 million (31st March 2023: about HK$67 million).
As at 31st March 2024, the headcount for the Electronic and Electrical
Trading Business decreased from 330 full-time employees last year
by approximately 5.5% to 312 full-time employees for the Year Under
Review while the headcount for the Computer Business decreased from
47 full-time employees last year by approximately 12.8% to 41 full-time
employees for the Year Under Review and the headcount for Cosmetic
and Online Retail Business decreased from nine (9) full-time employees
last year by approximately 44.4% to five (5) full-time employees for the
Year Under Review. Meanwhile, finance cost for the Year Under Review
decreased by about 9.3% to approximately HK$3.9 million (31st March
2023: approximately HK$4.3 million).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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CEOQO’s Statement
AT AR R

>

@ MANTECH"
ELECTRONICS

Development Strategy and Outlook

Looking ahead, geopolitical tensions are expected to be an unfavourable
factor impacting the markets for consumer electronic products. Factors
such as national and European Union elections, ongoing wars, sustained
inflation and high interest rates bring a lot of uncertainties and
instabilities to the export trading business. The Group expects that this
negative macroeconomic and geopolitical situation may start to improve by
the end of 2024.

The Group’s new headquarters in South Africa, which covers an area of
approximately 130,000 square feet, began operating in early 2023. In
addition to promoting the corporate image of the Group and increasing
the available warehouse space, this new facility has also enhanced the
product distribution network of the Group. The Company expects that the
improvement in overall logistical efficiency will contribute positively to the
Group's profitability in the long run.

Regarding the Computer Business segment, the Group anticipates
continued softness or weakened demand for computer products and mobile
accessories in the near future. To address this, the Group will focus on
strengthening its brand image and developing new, innovative products to
better cater to the evolving market demands and consumer preferences in
this segment.
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CEOQ’s Statement
AT B AR

As for the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business, the Group believes that
as social and economic conditions normalise with the lifting of boarder
restrictions, combined with the continued enthusiasm of Hong Kong
consumers for cross-border “northbound” shopping, the rapid growth
in online consumption patterns witnessed earlier will transition to the
next phase of development. Despite the changing consumer purchasing
behaviour, the Group remains optimistic about the prospects of its Online
Retail Business.

In conclusion, while the Group faces near-term challenges from global
geopolitical and economic headwinds, it is taking strategic steps to
enhance its operations, product offerings, and market positioning across
its various business segments. The Group remains cautiously optimistic
about its ability to navigate the evolving market conditions and deliver
improved performance in the coming years.

Appreciation

I would like to thank our management team and all our staff members for
their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the Year Under
Review. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25th June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Business Review

During the Year Under Review, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
electrical components and equipment under the brand of meses (the
“Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the computer business
which includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone
accessories under the brand of VideoCom (the “"Computer Retail
Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer products and consumer

together with the Computer Retail Business, the “Computer Business”);
and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business mainly under the brand of
25 and wishh! (the “Cosmetic and Online Retail Business”). The
Electronic and Electrical Trading Business, the Computer Business and the
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business accounted for approximately 66%
and 19% and 15% of the Group's total turnover respectively for the Year

Under Review.

The gross profit margin of the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business,
the Computer Business and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business were
approximately 29.5%, 19.8% and 20.8% respectively for the Year Under
Review (31st March 2023: approximately 28.0%, 19.3% and 24.8%).

Electronic and Electrical Trading Business
Hong Kong

Electronic and Electrical Trading Business is the primary contributor
to the Group's revenue during the Year Under Review and recorded
revenue of approximately HK$223 million as compared with that of
approximately HK$273 million recorded last year, representing a decrease
of approximately 18.3%. During the Year Under Review, the trading of
electronic components maintained in a declining cycle due to shirking
demand. The recovery of the trading business was slower than originally
expected. Nevertheless, the Group remains optimistic about the Electronic
and Electrical Trading Business.

£ 5 1ol
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Overseas

The aggregate turnover of all of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries was
approximately HK$144 million for the year ended 31st March 2024,
representing an overall decrease of approximately 16.8% as compared
with that of approximately HK$173 million recorded last year.

The Group's subsidiaries in South Africa recorded turnover of
approximately HK$119 million for the year ended 31st March 2024,
representing a decrease by approximately 9.8% from approximately
HK$132 million last year. In the correspondence period, the diminished
demand on electronic components extended from consumer sector to
industrial sector. The combined effect of over-stock and slow-moving-stock
situation at our customers offsets our scheduled recovery.

In terms of geographical segments, the turnover from Hong Kong, the
Asia Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and
other regions accounted for approximately 45%, 17%, 35%, 2% and 1%
respectively of the Group's total turnover during the Year Under Review.

Computer Business

For the year ended 31st March 2024, the Computer Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$13 million (31st March 2023:
approximately HK$16 million), representing a decrease of approximately
18.8%. For the year ended 31st March 2024, the turnover of the Computer
Distribution Business recorded a decrease of approximately 14.1% to
approximately HK$55 million (31st March 2023: approximately HK$64
million). Despite the turnover decrease, the gross profit margin for
Computer Business recorded an increase to 19.8% (31st March 2023:
19.3%) which was mainly due to the Group's continued dynamic sales
strategies.

Cosmetic and Online Retail Business

During the Year Under Review, the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$50 million (31st March 2023:
approximately HK$57 million), representing a decrease of approximately
12.3%. The Cosmetic Business faced challenges brought by the
conservative consumer sentiment and uncertain economic environment.
In February 2024, we closed a retail store located in Tseung Kwan 0. The
Group is pleased to see the continued growth of its Online Retail Business.
The persistent decrease in Japanese yen (JPY) will be beneficial for the
Group to procure a wider variety of Japanese products.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2024, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$24 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$115 million. As at 31st March 2024, the current ratio
increased to approximately 2.2 (as at 31st March 2023: approximately 1.9).
Out of the Group’s cash and bank balances, about 28% and 21% were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively.
The balance of approximately 6%, 27%, 12%. 3%, 2% and 1% of its
total cash and bank balances were denominated in Chinese Renminbi,
South African Rand, Malaysian Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars, Singapore
dollars, Euro and others respectively. The Group's total assets amounted
to approximately HK$274 million (as at 31st March 2023: approximately
HK$320 million). Net assets per share amounted to approximately HK$0.83
(as at 31st March 2023: approximately HK$0.86). Dividend and basic loss
per share were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.025 respectively (as at
31st March 2023: approximately HK$0.01 and basic earnings per share
HK$0.002 respectively).

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at
31st March 2024, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans
and trade finance from banks totaling approximately HK$89 million (as at
31st March 2023: approximately HK$91 million), with an unused balance
of approximately HK$63 million (as at 31st March 2023: approximately
HK$40 million). The Directors believe that the Group’s existing financial
resources are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working
capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2024, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$26 million (as at 31st March 2023: HK$50 million),
which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including short-term
loans and trade finance) for financing the daily business operations and
future development plans. The majority of the Group's bank borrowings as
at 31st March 2024 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. These short-
term loans and trade finance were secured by the Company’s corporate
guarantees of approximately HK$76 million and the leasehold properties
and investment properties in Singapore, Portugal and South Africa (as
at 31st March 2023: HK$76 million). During the Year Under Review, the
Group's borrowings bore interest at rates ranging from 3.08% to 12.4% per
annum (as at 31st March 2023: ranging from 2.8% to 11.3% per annum).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Gearing ratio

As at 31st March 2024, the Group's gross borrowings repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$62 million (as at 31st March 2023:
approximately HK$76 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$24 million, the Group's net borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$38 million (as at 31st March 2023: approximately
HK$46 million). The total equity as at 31st March 2024 was approximately
HK$167 million (as at 31st March 2023: approximately HK$173 million).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to
total equity, decreased to 25% (as at 31st March 2023: 29%).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
Most of the Group’s transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to
be under control and that the Hong Kong Government's policy of pegging
the Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the
Directors consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have
been undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2024, the Group had no
significant risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest
rates, currency swaps, or other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2024, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$25 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiaries in Singapore, Portugal and South
Africa.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O P i S S A

Employment, Training and Remuneration
Policy

As at 31st March 2024, the Group had a total of 358 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies

Save as disclosed in this announcement, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisition and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies during the Year Under Review.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

5 TR AR L

Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 63, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(the "Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 40 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

Dr. Hung is also the Group 20 Honorary Chairman (Non-manufacturing Il:
Trading (Hong Kong Trade Services Council)) of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries and the School Manager of De La Salle Secondary School
New Territories.

Dr. Hung is the husband of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the Deputy Chairman
and CEO of the Company, the brother of Mr. Hung Ying Fung, Measure, an
executive director of the Company and the brother-in-law of Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix, who is also an executive director of the Company. He is
also the father of Ms. Hung Lok Lam, Joyce and Mr. Hung Lok Tin, who are
both senior management of the Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Dr. Hung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor
did he hold any major appointments nor professional qualifications. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Dr. Hung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as
at 31st March 2024. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Hung does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

PIT#EF

HelE

635% * HITEF
REAKEZRIMARARBEZE(ERFE]D) » B35
BEXEREARSTIHERRBELSM - HFL
REFITERBBAOFER AR ARBERRE
MBI BEBER -

HETA-AWAAFE—BEHIEAETERS
(THKEADBITZEE 28 YR _ZT—hFE
REAHKEIARNEE RS K -

HELNRERATEESF 00 A (FIRIERE
X-EHH(BREEIMBEERE)) REZFEMH
KPP P ERE -

HEERARRBIZRERITRERGRELLZ
LR MEARRRTERFHAERERE 2R R
ARBATEEGRERELEZEKX - WITZAR
ASREREKEREM L L PR ERELEZR
B

BRRATHTEST BN ABEE=FHL
BREBFEEFNEEXEIESTS LM 2
LR RBREEEMNESRL - FTESEEMNEE
MERREXRER  -BRAFREEEREZ (&
ERIZITHABRBRARGESE 572 e —
BHFAEEEN  RZE-MFE=A=+—H "
HBELHEREMRN (EE KBS LB
(IBEFEHEED D EXVE) hEE#E - KR L
XAEEEN A TREMEMARTES
SRERE - T ERRIEEBRRR Z FX E R
BE -



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R A L

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 62, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ”) of the Company.
With more than 40 years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms.
Yeung is responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and internal
control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014— 2015) and Advisory Committee (2010-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman of the Company, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure
and the sister of an executive director of the Company, Mr. Yeung Kwok
Leung, Allix. Ms. Yeung is also the sister-in-law of Mr. Hung Ying Fung,
an executive director of the Company, and the mother of Ms. Hung Lok
Lam, Joyce and Mr. Hung Lok Tin, who are both senior management of the
Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Ms. Yeung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor
did she hold any major appointments nor professional appointments. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Ms. Yeung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31st March 2024. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Yeung does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

TR A L

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 60, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and
cosmetic retail business development of the Group and has over 38 years
of experience in the electronics industry. In 2024, He was elected as
the chairman of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company
Limited. Mr. Hung was served as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce & Industrial Liaison Committee (2021-2023). He is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Mr. Hung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Mr. Hung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31st March 2024. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Hung does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders
of the Company.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 61, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in the PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He
has over 39 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry.
He is the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the brother-in-law of Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung Ying
Fung, an executive director of the Company. Mr. Yeung is also the uncle
of Ms. Hung Lok Lam, Joyce and Mr. Hung Lok Tin, who are both senior
management of the Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Mr. Yeung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor
did he hold any major appointments nor professional qualifications. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Mr. Yeung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31st March 2024. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Yeung does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R A L

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 60, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since 19th
April 2001. Dr. Leung is a qualified accountant, chartered secretary and
Chartered Governance Professional with over 37 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. He holds the Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Forensic Accounting and Auditing, the Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Management, the Doctor of Education degree in
Educational Management, a Doctor of Business Administration degree,
a Honorary Doctor of Accounting, a Master of Science in Finance and
Strategy, a Master of Professional Accounting degree, a Master of Law in
International and Commercial Law, a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration, a Bachelor of Commerce degree majoring in Accounting,
and a Diploma in Forensic Accounting. He is an associate member of each
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada, CPA Australia,
Chartered Governance Institute and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Dr. Leung
is also an adjunct lecturer of the Hong Kong University (SPACE). He is
currently an independent non-executive director of AV Promotions Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8419), and chief financial officer of HM International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8416) He was an executive director in 2021
of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293).

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Leung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

TR A L

Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 68, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since 25th May
2011. He obtained an Honorary Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and
a Diploma in Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979
and 1985 respectively. He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981
and was appointed Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired
in August 2016 at the age of 60. Mr. Ku has been the Vice-chairman of
the Tai Po & North District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong
Kong Schools Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the
Federation’s Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He has also
been the Vice- chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’
Association and is currently a member of the Hong Kong Lasallian
Education Council.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ku did not hold any directorship in the last
three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ip Fu Wa, Benthony,

aged 65, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since 31st
August 2022. He has over 25 years in the finance and administration
sectors. He first started his career in England and later joined an
international firm as an assistant audit manager until 1989. Mr. Ip then
pursued his career in the commercial sector by involving in property
investment in the U.S. and engaging in the trading operations. From 2001
to 2013, he joined a listed company in Hong Kong and worked as the
company secretary and assistant to the company’s chairman. In 2000, he
established his own consultancy firm to provide consulting services to
companies established in Hong Kong and overseas.

He obtained a bachelor's degree in mathematics from University
College London in 1981. He has been a member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since May 1988. He is also a non-
practising member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ip did not hold any directorship in the last
three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor profession qualifications, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R A L

Senior Management

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 66, Senior Management

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st
March 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the
Company, he is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited), Mantech
Electronics (Proprietary) Limited (“Mantech Electronics”), Mobicon
International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited. Mr.
Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the Portuguese diaspora by
Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho is responsible for the business operations of the Group in
South Africa and Portugal. He joined the Group in December 2001 when
Mantech Electronics was acquired by the Group and became an executive
director of the Company in June 2013. Mr. Moutinho obtained his national
certificate in Electronics from the University of Johannesburg (formerly
known as Technikon Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated at the
Johannesburg Technical College in South Africa in 1977. He is a qualified
electrical technician engineer.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Moutinho did not hold any directorship in
the last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on
any securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Tsoi Ho Yin,

aged 39, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Tsoi is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in September 2016. He has
more than 15 years of experience in auditing and accounting.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsoi did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 34, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of, and
merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from The University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,
all of whom are executive directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Hung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
she is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does she have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

Hung Lok Tin,

aged 33, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Mobicon Group Limited. Mr.
Hung joined the Group in January 2013 and is responsible for overseeing
the product development, merchandising and brand management of the
Group. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree from
the Australian National University. He is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the nephew of Mr. Hung Ying Fung
and the nephew of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom are executive
directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
he is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any interests in
the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 57, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He
graduated from Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and
has over 30 years of experience in distribution of electronic components
and test and measurement instruments. He is currently responsible for the
overall operation of these two companies covering Southeast Asia.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chooi did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix C1 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the Year Under Review except for the following deviations:

Code Provision B.2.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws
of the Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman
will not be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the
services of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the
successful implementation of any long term business plan, the Board
believes that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and
the shareholders as a whole. Save for Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony who was
appointed as an independent non-executive director (the “INED”) for a term
of two years since 31st August 2022, the other INEDs are not appointed for
a specific term, all the INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law 111
of the Company's Bye-laws.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the Year Under
Review.
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Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Hung Ying
Fung, and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ip
Fu Wa, Benthony, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One
of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise, which is required by the Listing
Rules. Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.
She is also the sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung
is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 16
to 23 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.
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The CEQ is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group’s
operations.

The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting at the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the Year Under Review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the discussions of two
continued connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance
with Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group's performance and financial position.

During the Year Under Review, the Company had arranged an in-house
training session to the directors on the implications of late disclosure
of inside information from recent cases. In addition, the directors had
attended external courses, conferences and luncheons organised by
various organisations to further enhance their capacities to carry out
directors’ duties.
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The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.

According to the records maintained by the Company Secretary, all
Directors pursued continuous professional development during the Year
Under Review and relevant details are set out below:

EENEMRRTRSAEBEBRIBEANE
HEFHEMN ARHEMERERE AR RNIAH
ERNERENERNMEER -

REBEARWERTZLE  AIEESHENEE
FRETHEERERE - BREFBIMAWT ¢

Type of trainings

EEEE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HRlEiEt A&B
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BREL T A&B
Mr. Hung Ying Fung gL A A&B
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE A&B
Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony HEELE A&B
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFFLT A&B
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric mKEELE A&B
A attending seminars/conferences/forums A: HEHE g wiE
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,  B: FEEEKE ZHEE EERU

general business, corporate governance and directors” duties and
responsibilities

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Save for Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony, who was appointed as an INED of the
Company for a term of two years since 31st August 2022, there is no
specific term of the appointment of the other INEDs. However, all the
INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Bye-laws of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision B.2.2
of the Code which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for
specific terms subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The
Board considers that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does
not intend to change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, three directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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According to Bye-law 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members may,
at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office provided that
the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing a
director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and be served
on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such
meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his/
her removal.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at 31st March 2024, the Board consisted of six male Directors and
one female Director. Among all employees of the Group, male employees
accounted for 57% and female employees accounted for 43%. The Group
believes that the gender ratio of employees is within the reasonable range.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

i to review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.

Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on 20th
February 2006 to assist the Board to oversee the remuneration packages
of and determine the remuneration structure of the executive directors and
senior management of the Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai
Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference
including the duties of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2022/2023, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of
the Group is HK$8 million or above but is less than HK$10 million; and (ii)
10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$10
million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee also approved
to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to determine
the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all executive
directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less than 10% of
the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.
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During the Year Under Review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Remuneration Committee were tabled to the
Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate. On
29th February 2024, the Remuneration Committee resolved that a new
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2024/2025 will be adopted which provides that the aggregate
amount of management bonuses payable to all executive directors in
respect of any financial year of the Company shall not exceed (i) 5% of the
net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$3 million or
above but is less than HK$5 million; and (ii) 10% of the net profits of the
Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$5 million or above. Furthermore,
the Remuneration Committee also approved that, with effect from the
fiscal year 2024/2025, it shall delegate the authority to the Chairman of
the Group to determine the distribution level on the management bonus
payout to all executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to
not less than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section for the Year Under Review:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of the
Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Mr. Ip
Fu Wa, Benthony and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including the
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Nomination Committee
was amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted a policy for the nomination of the
directors (the “Nomination Policy”). According to the Nomination Policy,
the Nomination Committee will use the following non-exhaustive factors,
including reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest, the
Company's board diversity policy and the independence of the candidate
(in the case of independent non-executive Directors) as reference in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for consideration
by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members. The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility and final
decision on all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

During the Year Under Review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ip Fu Wa,
Benthony, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year Under Review.
The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.

During the meetings held in the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2023 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2023;

(i1) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;

(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules

and other statutory compliance;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems of the Group;

(v) reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and
management’s response; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the
2023/2024 audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Company may declare dividend
according to the recommendation of the Board. The Company may in its full
discretion decide not to declare dividend due to various reasons, including
but not limited to maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and
reserving more capital to capture opportunities, etc. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(ii) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(vii)  the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry
norm;

(viii)  the general market conditions; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Attendance of Individual Directors BEBZ RN
The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee, MREOFEEE @ KETHEEEeeH  BHKEE
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General &2z - FMEES ez  REEEETEHENK
Meeting during the Year Under Review is set out in the table below. RRFAEG ZEEHNTE -
Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2023/2024
R-B-=/“B-_MEEHRE BTEERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEpE EZ88E BNRZESEE FHZEeeE REZE88F RREFA®
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HRlzEL 6/6 N/ARE A N/ATRE A 1/1 11
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEELT 6/6 N/ATE A il N/ANEF n
Mr. Hung Ying Fung MEELE 6/6 N/ATNE A N/ATE N/ATNE 11
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BRREE 6/6 N/ATEAR N/ATiER N/ATER i
Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony BEEEg4 6/6 4/4 N/ATRER 171 1N
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHET 6/6 4/4 i 1 1N
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKEEE 6/6 4/4 i N/ATiE 11

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2024, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 71 to 76
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year Under Review were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
For the Year Under Review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:

Friz AR %

Services rendered

A B v <
REEEE - XN TARARBARGRHTE
BHRERARZMERIIMT -

Fee paid/payable
Bt ENER
HK$'000
FET

B R

Audit services
Non-audit services — Interim review

900

IEAZ EPR TS — AP R B 220

1,120

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to identify, analyse, evaluate and mitigate risk
exposures that may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of
our operation or prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated
by our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter
alia, enhance the Company's governance and corporate management
processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses. The risk management process of the Group
will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual risk identification exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks (including
documenting those of potentially high impact) and the development
and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; (ii)
testing of documented risk management procedures at approval intervals;
and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal
control systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are
implemented through our operational process and the results of the same
has been reported to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to
examine key issues in relation to the financial and operational matters/
practices and to provide its findings and any recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.
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With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that
unauthorised access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the Year Under Review, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period, and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.

Investor Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board; (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company's
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San
Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c)
by fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day- to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the Year Under
Review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that he has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (the “SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.
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(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General

(iii)

Meetings (the “GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one- twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the meeting provided that the shareholders
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered shareholders.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year Under Review, the Company has amended its
constitutional documents. Details of the amendments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 15th July 2022. An up-to-date version of
the Bye-Laws of the Company is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and Company.

(ii)

(iii)
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About This Report

During the Reporting Period (defined hereinunder), Mobicon Group
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries from time to time,
our “Group” or “we") operated three core business operations, namely:
(1) the distribution of electronic components, electrical components and
equipment under the brand of Mobicon (the “Electronic and Electrical
Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail
sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand
of VideoCom (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of
computer products and consumer products under the brand of APower (the
“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail
Business under the brand of Wishh! and APower. Our Group's head office
is in Hong Kong and has subsidiaries in South Africa, Mainland China,
Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and Portugal.

This report (“Report”) is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Appendix C2 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)). Since our Group’s head office and main business are in Hong
Kong, based on materiality principle, unless otherwise specified, this
Report focuses principally on our measures and performance of the
environmental and social aspects of our trading, distribution and retail
businesses in Hong Kong.

This Report covers the period from 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024
(the "Reporting Period”), and is accessible at the Stock Exchange's
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s official website
(www.mobicon.com).

Stakeholder Engagement

We understand that the engagement of stakeholders including
shareholders, customers, staff, suppliers and the public is important to
our environmental and social sustainability. During our operation, we keep
communicating effectively with our stakeholders through various channels
including employee workshops, shareholder meetings, and customer
daily contacts to understand their concerns and expectations. All these
feedbacks and communication help us formulate our strategies in respect
of sustainability and serve as the reference of materiality assessment in
this Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Strategics
We have established a sustainable corporate governance structure.
To ensure that the vision and mission of sustainable development are
integrated into its operations, the board (the “Board”) of directors of
the Company (the "Director(s)”) formulates our Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") strategies and communicates them to the
executive Directors and senior management, who then execute the plan.
The Board holds the overall responsibility for our Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. It reviews our Group's ESG reports annually, evaluates
key risks, and provides relevant recommendations for the coming year.
The Board takes a leadership role and gives direction to management by
instituting ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their implementation,
and monitoring ESG performance.

To further support this progress, our Group has set up an ESG task force,
composed of executive Directors and senior management from relevant
departments. Dedicated staff are assigned to collect data relevant to ESG
and compile ESG reports. The ESG task force regularly reports key risks and
the execution progress of recommendations at regular Board meetings.

The ESG task force is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group's
ESG policies and operating practices. They engage and communicate
with external professional consultants to ensure that the Group complies
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements. The ESG task force also
monitors and responds to the latest ESG issues, reports major concerns to
the Board regularly, and makes recommendations to enhance the Group's
ESG performance. Our management reviews the progress of established
ESG targets and takes measures to achieve them. The progress of these
targets and any suggestions are reported to the Board at least annually.
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Environmental Performance

We understand that environmental protection is important to our business
and social sustainability. In our operation, we use our best endeavour to
minimise our impact on the environment. Reducing, reusing and recycling
are our strategies for commitment to the environment.

Aspect Al: Emissions

In light of the business nature of our Group, no hazardous waste and
emission was produced. Greenhouse gas ("GHG") was our Group’s main
emission. Electricity usage was the major source of GHG emission. Our
Group continues to improve the operation units’ facilities to enhance
resource efficiency and produce less emission to protect the environment.
The amount of emissions has been reduced as a result of our measures.

Hazardous Waste

In view of our business nature, our Group did not generate substantial
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. Nevertheless, our Group
has established guidelines to govern the management and disposal of
hazardous waste. All disposal processes must comply with all relevant
laws and regulations.

Non-hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous waste generated by our Group was mainly office paper.
During the Reporting Period, we generated a total of 1,600 kg of waste
paper. To control paper consumption effectively, our Group implements
environmental protection rules and guidance for our staff to follow. We
encourage our staff to make good use of office paper, including collecting
single-sided paper for reuse and double-side used paper for recycle. Also,
we provide green recycle boxes in our workplaces, warehouses and offices
for collecting paper for reuse or recycle.
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During the Reporting Period, our Group had strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of the hazardous and non-hazardous waste. During the Reporting Period,
our Group did not commit any material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations related to environmental protection,
including but not limited to, the Product Eco-Responsibility Ordinance
(Chapter 603 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

RBEME  AREEBETHEHEREAY
EnMBERBERIRERBIW - KR HE
AAREERBEERERMNELSNHEBERR
BRO - RIREME - AEERBEEEMNERER
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BRETNRICERRFRE TEID(BRENF
B03E ) M= RIS R E HlRPI) (FAEEHIFHIN
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Indicators BE 2022/2023 2023/2024
= kel —B—=
TE-=4F —E-UE
Approximately ~ Approximately
#J #
NO, emissions from vehicles (kg) BHRHOAELDNOERE(TR) 38.39 39.82
SO, emissions from vehicles (kg) BEEMRA /S0 EERE(FR) 0.12 0.11
PM emissions from vehicles (kg) B BRI PMBERE (F52) 3.56 3.70
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) BERBEIRAE (SEE - 2X3)
(tonnes) (mg) 264 203
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) BYHAEEEBERNREREIR
per floor area (tonnes/sq m) we (#EE - 2K%3)
(BE,/ ¥ F52K) 0.04 0.04
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) BUEEAERBHNES
per employee (tonnes/employee) (8E" - 23)(HEBE) 2 2
Scope 1 direct emissions (tonnes) HENHEETERE (W)
— company fleet — A EK 19 18
Scope 2 indirect emissions (tonnes) & E2H R BER = (HR)
— electricity —& N 245 181
Scope 3 indirect emissions (tonnes) #E 3R AP E (HE)
— business air travel —NBE 0 4

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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Our Group proactively takes effective measures to reduce emissions of
GHG and exhaust gas. Our Group encourages our staff to use virtual video
conference in order to reduce carbon emission from transportation. Our
Group also encourages our employees to travel by public transport to
reduce exhaust gas and GHG emissions by private cars.

Our Group’s five year plan is to reduce the intensity of the emissions of
GHG and exhaust gas by 5%, using the Reporting Period as the baseline
year.

Our Group will continuously seek ways to minimise our Group's carbon
footprint and improve its energy saving, as well as reducing emissions,
including but not limited to communicating with our Group’s employees on
the importance of environmental issues, and formulating and implementing
measures in reducing GHG and exhaust gas emissions during the course of
business.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

During the Reporting Period, our Group continued employing various
energy-saving plans to improve our energy efficiency and to lessen our
power consumption. We educated our staff on the green environment
concept and promoted paperless office, green office and low carbon
life. All new decoration or renovation in our offices or shops used high-
efficiency T5 tubes and LED lighting. Room temperature of our offices
was always kept at 25 degree Celsius to minimise unnecessary power
consumption. The air conditioners and lighting of our office/warehouse
had various zone controls to achieve energy efficiency. Employees were
encouraged to switch off the computers, monitors and equipment when
they were not in use or when the employee(s) was/were off duty to save
energy. Our staff was requested to ensure that air conditioners, lighting
and office equipment were switched off when he/she was the last one
to leave the office/shop. The amount of emissions has been reduced as a
result of our measures.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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Indicators BE 2022/2023 2023/2024
—_F-_— —E-=
—E=F —EEF
Approximately — Approximately
- A
Total energy consumption (kWh) BERAaES (TEE) 512,000 407,000
Total energy consumption per floor area $ﬁ%$§@ﬁ?§ﬁzﬁ?@ﬁg
(kWh/sq m) (FREF7HK 82 82
Total energy consumption per employee B E BERE u%%i
(kWh/employee) (FERE1EES) 4,200 3,800
Direct energy consumption (kWh) BERRES(TER) 73,000 71,000
Unleaded petrol £ DR 9,000 7,000
Diesel SE5mH 64,000 64,000
Indirect energy consumption (kWh) — electricity I REE(FRE) —FH 439,000 336,000

Our business is operated mostly in commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and shopping malls. Water supply/wastewater drainage is
generally managed by the respective building/mall management office.
The management offices do not provide meter or data in respect of the
consumption level to individual tenant, so our Group does not possess
information in respect of water consumption for disclosure. During the
Reporting Period, our Group did not encounter any problems in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. Our Group encourages water conservation and
reduces water wastage in our operation whenever possible.

Our Group's five-year plan is to reduce energy consumption by 5%,
using the Reporting Period as the baseline year. Our Group will continue
to educate the employees on energy-saving in order to reduce energy
consumption. Changes will be made to our policies if our Group identifies
any measures that are detrimental to environmental protection.

Our Group is principally engaged in the trading and distribution of
electronic components, electrical components and equipment and
computer products and mobile accessories and trading of cosmetic
products, hence does not involve a significant amount of packaging
materials for the finished products. Nevertheless, for other resources
consumed from our business activities, the Company upholds the principle
of resources management and is committed to the proper use of all
resources.
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the business nature of our Group has little impact on the
environment and natural resources, we still use our best endeavour
to minimise our impact on the environment. Our Group educates our
employees on environmental protection concepts, such as using less
paper, using electronic communication (e.g. email, mobile phone Apps) to
deliver information and avoiding unnecessary printing and use of paper
and ink. The default setting of our Group network’s printers is double-sided
printing to minimise paper consumption. We encourage our staff to print
on both sides, reuse one-side-printed paper or recycle paper, and to use
network copier for sending or saving files to minimise paper consumption.
At our warehouse, our carton boxes are reused repeatedly and recycled
when they are no longer fit for use. At our offices, we provide recycle bins
for waste paper and plastic bottles and arrange for collection periodically
to reduce waste disposal and recycle materials. Old defective computers,
office equipment and printer cartridges are also collected by recyclers
to reduce environmental pollution. Our Group is committed to reducing
waste generated from our business operations. We avoid purchasing new
equipment when decorating and/or renovating our office/shops.

JEA3 : BREE R RARE W

HAREBEBHEEHRERRAERTEE
W RATEEZAZ HANRDHEMHRENZ
2 AEERETERREREDS  BREERD
A - LNEFRAT A (B FHBAER)
AR - B R AT ED SR D SR AN AR D
BER - NREBAAFEKITENE - BREEITED
B DR REHE - ARESBE TRAE
EFIED - ARREEERITED - LARSE AR
WRNBERBE XM ERERERRFET - LWRDHAR
HREE - EAKHEAE  RATSELEBEAR
B EETITBANSETER - REEBRAE

REBEALBEEYAE - ERLPEEY - LR
BEYVYE  EERSAERSER - AEETE

ZH O R EIRENER - P AR KK
*ﬁA VURBR S IRIF RIS - REBBR D
LEMELMNERY - HPINBAE/EHE
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Our Group has been awarded the Wastewi$e Certificate by the Hong Kong B ZZT—N\FUK - AEE-HESET GO
Green Organization Certification since 2018. This recognition highlights — R EBEEMFEEE - WRBEE T RMALE
our commitment to environmental conservation and our accomplishments (R R &35 LA&EM%?%%H@H&Z?’FU?HEE
in waste reduction and recycling initiatives. FIRKHE ©
Indicators B 2022/2023 2023/2024
—E-= —E-=
—T=F —E-EF
Approximately ~ Approximately
#9 #J
Office paper purchased (kg) WAERAREBEE(TR) 1,800 1,600
Carton purchased (pce) MAEERES () 11,800 7,000
Plastic bag purchased (pce) BREES () 6,800 7,000
Paper/carton recycled (kg) RE4K BERABIWE(T5) 7,800 8,000
Plastic bottle recycled (pce) BEoE (1) 1,000 1,000
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Aspect A4: Climate Change
Our Group recognises the harm brought by climate change to our business
operations, stakeholders and the global economy. Our Group has been
closely monitoring the impact of climate change and is committed to
mitigating its effect on our Group.

Physical Risks: The increased frequency of extreme weathers, such as
typhoons and heat wave can disrupt our Group’s business operations, for
instance, hindering the transportation and travelling of the employees, and
interrupting our Group's sale and distribution of products to customers. To
minimise potential risks, our Group has adopted work contingency plan to
ensure the safety of the employees and smooth business operations of our
Group under extreme weather conditions.

Transition Risks: Our Group expects that more stringent climate
legislation and regulations to combat climate change and support global
efforts in decarbonisation. The enhanced disclosure in the environmental,
social and governance reports required by the Stock Exchange is likely
to result in the increase in compliance costs. Qur Group's reputation is
likely to be affected if our Group fails to implement relevant measures to
meet climate change compliance requirements. Our Group is committed to
assessing the effectiveness of the existing measures and plans in tackling
climate change and monitoring the climate-related trends and policies, so
that our Group can adopt appropriate measures to avoid non-compliances
fines, economic loss and/or reputational risks owing to delayed actions.

Social Performance

Employment and Labour Practices

Aspect B1: Employment

Human capital is a valuable asset of our Group for the sustainability and
growth of our business. As at 31st March 2024, our Group had a total of
358 full-time employees and 18 short-term and part-time staff. Our Group
follows the principle of meritocracy and employs talent, regardless of
gender, age, marital status, family status, race and religion. All employees
are treated equally and have the same opportunity. To the best information
and knowledge of our directors, there were no discrimination and no
harassment cases reported in our Group during the Reporting Period. The
recruitment, promotion and remuneration of our staff are based on their
abilities and performances without any discrimination.
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To attract, motivate and retain talent, our Group provides our employees
with competitive remuneration and welfare. Based on personnel
performance and our Group's business performance, there will be a
discretionary bonus at year-end. Our Group will review the remuneration
and welfare provided to individual staff every year in order to maintain our
market competitiveness on the retention of human resources.

During the Reporting Period, our Group had strictly complied with all
relevant employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong that have
a significant impact on us relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hog Kong) and all other relevant ordinances. During the Reporting
Period, no claims of employment matters were brought against our Group
by our employees. Our Group provides more holidays and rest periods than
the statutory requirements to our employees. In addition to the entitlement
of paid annual leave and statutory holidays, the office staff has paid rest
days on Saturday and Sunday, and the staff of Wishh! shops has five (5)
days off per month. Our Group also provides medical insurance benefits to
our employees.

Working hours and rest periods are clearly stated in our Group’s employee
handbook (the “Employee Handbook”) and in compliance with the local
employment laws.

Our Group compensates our employees according to the statutory
requirements. Unreasonable dismissal under any circumstances is strictly
prohibited. There was no material non-compliance on the part of our Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest periods
during the Reporting Period.

To boost our staff motivation and increase their sense of belonging, our
Group organises birthday broadcasting parties and snacks sharing. We
offer various kinds of awards to outstanding staff on a monthly, quarterly
and annual basis, e.g. The Best Attendance Award, The Best Cleaning
Award and The Most Customer Visit Award.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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2023/2024
—E-=
Number of total Employee BT AE —E-ME
By gender iR 8D
Male s 57%
Female pegic 43%
By age RERED
30 or below 30BREIA T 14%
31-40 31-405% 29%
41-50 41-507% 29%
51 or above 51k A 28%
By employment category ZEFEER B D
Senior management = 3%
Middle management A 1%
General —N& 81%
Short-term and Part-time RHMBRET 5%
By geographical region R E &5
Asia EENI 40%
Europe BOM 3%
Africa FEM 57%
2023/2024
—E2=-=/
Employee turnover rate BEBTIRAR —E-NE
By gender ®RER 8D
Male B 18%
Female 2 14%
By age RERE D
30 or below 30BREA T 17%
31-40 31-405% 19%
41-50 41-505% 9%
51 or above Bl1pRak DA £ 21%
By geographical region R BEE D
Asia oM 18%
Europe BOM 0%
Africa FEM 14%
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety

We are committed to providing a healthy and safe working environment
to every employee and to providing our employees with the appropriate
equipment, safety information and training. Our Group also helps improve
our employee’s concept of work safety and health by providing relevant
trainings. Qur Group further endeavours to build a healthy and safe
working environment with zero accident and zero work injury.

Prolonged usage of computers is a common problem for our employees in
office. In Hong Kong, our Group provides every employee in office with a
glass stand to elevate the position of the computer monitor or notebook
to encourage staff to have a correct posture when using a computer. We
endeavour to provide a healthy and comfortable working environment for
our employees.

During the Reporting Period, our Group had complied with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting our employees from
occupational hazards, including but not limited to, the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

EEB2 : REHELE
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2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024

_;:f/ - —g-=/

Occupational Health and Safety Data Bi¥@EREZ 2 HiE —T-F —T o= —E-E
Work related fatality ETEBRMIL TR 0 0 0
0R 0% 0R

Work injury cases >3 days BT SKPN 0 0 0
0°R 0= 0R

Work injury cases <3 days ERESIPN 0 0 0
0= 05 0=

Lost days due to work injury ATEBELTERE 0 day 0 day 0 day
(IZN (17N (IS

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BREL - A BRI

Aspect B3: Development and Training

Our Group believes staff development and training are key factors for the
development and growth of our business. We promote lifelong continuing
learning among our staff and encourage them to equip themselves with
knowledge of the latest technology or development for improvement in
work performance. Qur Group provides continuous on-the-job training to
our employees to enhance their knowledge and skills. We also encourage
our staff to attend courses or trainings for personal professional
development organized by external entities.

Our Group was awarded “Happy Company” by the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation in 2023.
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2023/2024
—g=-=

Percentage of employees trained FilEEES L —E-ME
Employee trained by gender BB NZIES
Male ESRis 40%
Female 2 31%
Employee trained by employment category REEENSINZIEE
Senior management = 100%
Middle management =n 63%
General —R 34%
The average training hours for employees by gender and employment A& EIRE - =M RIREFER 2 S HIES 15
category during the Reporting Period are as follows: B ET

2023/2024

—Zg=-=

Average training hours for employees EEF15E3IFE —ENEF
By gender EHERIE D
Male B 16
Female pegic 21
By employment category RERERNES
Senior management = 7
Middle management 2] 24
General —R 18
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

During the Reporting Period, our Group had complied with all relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to preventing
child and forced labour, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Our Group did not have
material non-compliance in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour during the Reporting Period. We do
not accept any forms of forced labour.

We also prohibit employing child labour at any working place under any
circumstances. To ensure that job applicants have met the legal working
age, our Group will inspect job applicant’s documents and qualifications
strictly during the recruitment process to ensure that all relevant laws and
regulations in respect thereof are complied with, and all records will be
kept for re-inspection when needed. During the Reporting Period, we did
not identify any issue related to child labour or forced labour within our
Group.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Our Group was awarded 1S09001 certification, and we are committed to
maintaining a high standard on purchase and supply chain management
to improve our operational efficiency and manage the environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

Our Group has our own procurement process to ensure the quality of our
supply chain. We aim to build and maintain trust with suppliers to ensure
stable and reliable cooperation. To ensure the quality of our suppliers, we
implement procedures for the suppliers’ selection, including but not limited
to, performing due diligence on the new suppliers and regular review of
the supplier performance with a view to ensuring the products provided
to our Group are of high quality and safe for their purposes. Our Group
also assesses the suppliers’ track record in complying with environmental
practices and social responsibility when selecting suppliers.

Our Group had a total of 1,159 suppliers during the Reporting Period.

The following is an analysis of our Group’s number of suppliers by
geographical area during the Reporting Period:

Number of suppliers by geographical area
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Operating Practices

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Product quality is of utmost importance to our business and customers
and we have a system to ensure product quality and safety. Under our
supply chain management, our suppliers are requested to provide relevant
documents and certification to us, and we shall ensure that the quality of
our products complies with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on us relating to health, safety and intellectual property
right matters. If there are any defects in the products supplied by the
suppliers, our Group would require the suppliers to provide alternatives so
that the products meet the legal and environmental requirements, and are
fit for our Group's uses and purposes. Qur Group constantly communicates
with the suppliers to ensure product quality.

We also use our best endeavour to ensure that our advertisements and
communication to customers do not contain any false and misleading
messages. It is our Group’s policy that if any product is found to have
health, safety and/or labelling issues, the sale and/or distribution of such
product will be suspended immediately. Our Group performs internal
checks and testing before the products are sold and delivered to the
customers. Unsatisfactory products will be rectified until they reach the
requisite standards. If there is any quality issue to our Group’s products,
our Group is prepared to recall the products and remedial actions will
be implemented immediately. Analysis of the defective products will be
carried out to avoid future recurrence. Our Group strives to maintain good
relationship with the major customers and is keen to develop business
relationships with new customers.

During the Reporting Period, our Group did not (i) record any products sold
or shipped which were subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons;
or (ii) any complaints in relation to our products sold or services provided.

During the Reporting Period, our Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to advertising
and labelling, e.g. the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). There was no material non-compliance relating to
health and safety, advertising and labelling that have a significant impact
on our Group during the Reporting Period.

We support the protection of intellectual property rights, and comply with
relevant legislation, including the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the
laws of Hong Kong). Our Group respects, observes and protects intellectual
property rights and undertakes not to sell products that infringe
intellectual property rights.
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During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of any material
infringement of intellectual property rights of our Group.

We respect customer’s privacy and we comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in protecting
customer personal data. We only collect personal data relevant and
necessary to conduct our business. Unless with the customer’s consent or
being compelled by law or for reasons of obtaining professional services
such as legal and audit, we will not disclose customer personal data to
any organisation or person not belonged to our Group. Also, our Employee
Handbook also clearly prohibits any unauthorised disclosure of the
personal data of our customers. During the Reporting Period, our Group
had complied with all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us relating to privacy matters and there was no non-compliance
case concerning breaches of customer privacy or losses of personal data of
our customers.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

Our Group is committed to maintaining our ethics and integrity at the
highest standard in business. We have zero tolerance to corruption and
bribery. All directors and staff must strictly comply with our Group's
employee conduct code to prevent any action of bribery and corruption and
they shall also follow relevant rules and guidelines when any conflict of
interests arises. Our Group provided anti-corruption education and training
to the directors and our employees to raise their awareness in ethical and
corruption issues during the Reporting Period.

It is our Group's policy that our employees are not allowed to solicit
or accept any advantages from our customers, potential customers,
or company business partners. The types of advantages and interests
include but not limited to money, gifts, loans, fees, rewards, employment,
contracts, services and favours.

Our Group has a whistle-blowing policy and we encourage the employees
to report any suspected corruption case directly to our Group's top
management. When a report is received, our Group will conduct immediate
investigations and take appropriate actions to rectify the situations as
soon as practicable. The identity of the whistle-blower is protected to
avoid unfair treatment.

Our Group has been in strict compliance with laws and regulations related
to anti-corruption, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, there was
no legal case regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
brought against our Group or our employees.
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Community

Aspect B8: Community Investment

Our Group has a strong commitment to corporate social responsibility to
support the long-term development of the communities. We endeavour
to participate in and organise activities that will bring positive influence
to the communities and take into consideration the communities’ needs
and interests. We concern youth education and vulnerable persons. We
encourage our employees to participate in community charitable activities
to help those in need. Our Group had been awarded the Caring Company
Logo for 17 consecutive years by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of our achievement in corporate social responsibility in areas
such as “Giving”, “Employing the Vulnerable”, “Caring the Employees” and
“Caring the Environment”. Our Group joined Love Teeth Day 2023/2024
in order to sponsor “Oral Health Service for the Needy” supported by The
Community Chest.

During the Reporting Period, charitable and other donations made by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$5,000.
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Reporting Guide Index 1) & 51

Corresponding
Subject Areas and Aspects section
FTEHERNER HEEE

A. Environmental
AR

Aspect A1: Emissions

ETEAT : BERY

General Disclosure
— PR

KPI'A1.1
RASRAR R RAL
KPI'A1.2
BSR4 WUERAL 2
KPI'A1.3
RS AE RIERAL3
KPI'A1.4
RAR AR WIERALL
KPI'A1.5
B4R DR 1RA1 S
KPI'A1.6

FASRIE BUETEALG

Environmental
BIE
Information on:

BHERIMORERBEN - Mk RLMNBTAREE R

BERZEYNEESH :
(a)  the policies; and
(a) BEXR: X

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

() BETHETABBEAZENHEBEZLROIHER

The types of emission and respective emissions data

HERUIE A AR BE R BUR

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

RERBAFRENTE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

EAEEEEMEENER

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELBREERZVMRERTE

Description of measures to mitigate emission and results achieved

o AR HE S B4 b PR IS A R

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are

handled, reduction, initiatives and results achieved

R EERBEZTERYNTE  REELSNERER

BIESIES

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B AL ARG

Subject Areas and Aspects
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Corresponding
section

HEREH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Environmental

fEmA2 : EREA RIR
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KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and result achieved
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for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
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ESGIREIDES
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with
reference to per unit produced
MRS IE B IZA25 S mATABRRMHNEERBEEENHGE
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources Environmental
[EEA3 : RIERKREIR RIR

General Disclosure

—RRINEE
KPI A3.1

R AR R 1RA3

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[ETEAS : RIZE1L

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI A4.1

RSB DU IR AL

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources
BIEZITAHRRRARAAREREKERTZENBR
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to manage

them
Bl EREEREBERRAAERNEATZEREEKNER
BRAEENTTE

Environmental
BIE
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer.
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Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer and the actions
taken to manage them
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Corresponding
Subject Areas and Aspects section
FTEHENE® HRAEE
B. Social
BALE
Aspect B1: Employment Employment
[EmEB1 : &% (=
General Disclosure Information on:
—MRIKEE BRI KRE  BERE - TERS - REA - TEH
g il RBERAREAMSSREF
(a)  the policies; and
(a) BE: &k
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
(b) BFHBTABERZENHBEERROINER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and

FASEAE IR 1RB1.
KPI B1.2

RA 48 AR 1EB1 .2

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHB2 : #EHEZZ

General Disclosure
—RHE

KPI B2.1
RASR 48 IR RB2.1
KPI B2.2
RASR 4R IR 1RB2.2
KPI B2.3

RAR 48 IR 1RB2.3

geographical region

LR - EEEE - FRRARI RMERE S HEBS B
Employee turnover rate by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region

RIER - BERL - Fiedn MRS D EBRKRLL R

Information on:

FRRMZ2TIERERREREER2BELEEN

(a)  the policies; and

(a) BR: R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to provision of a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

() BFHBTABEAZENEBEERAONER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

EILEREMETHAB KX

Lost days due to work injury

RIBEATIERE

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,

how they are implemented and monitored
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Subject Areas and Aspects
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

FETEB3 : & K%

General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI B3.1

BB A5 BUE1RB3

KPI B3.2

RASR 4R IR 13B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETEB4 : 25 T 2R

General Disclosure

—RRIBEE

KPI B4.1

B 48 AR 12 BA 1
KPI B4.2

FASE 4B A5 1RB4 2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work and description of training activities
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The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management)
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XIEEBDL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category
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Information on:

ERAMIEETRAGIZETH

(a)  the policies; and

a) BHE: Kk

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

() BEBFHBETABEAXEBNHEBEERAONER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid

child and forced labour
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Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered
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Corresponding
Subject Areas and Aspects section
FTEHENE® HEEEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management Supply Chain

Management
[ETEBS : HREHEER HEEE R

General Disclosure
—HEE

KPI B5.1

84 48 R 1EB5 1
KPI B5.2

8 G245 3B 1EB5.2

KPI B5.3

AR 48 AR 1RB5.3

KPI B5.4

RA 4R IR 1RB5 .4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain

EIRMHERNRE Mg RAREBR

Number of suppliers by geographical region
iR E S HHEEEE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored

i EEEREEEONED  RERITEBENHER
#HEH  UAREREMNMITRERAE

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored

AR EMNEEBENRERESRARNIED - LAKREH
BOIEIMIT R EER A

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility Product

Responsibility
[EEB6 : EREME EmAE

General Disclosure
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KPI B6.2
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KPI B6.3
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B4R AIE1RB6.5

Information on:

FRARMHERMBRBHERELZS BE  REELE
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(a)  the policies; and

a) HBX: Kk

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.

() BETFHBTABBEAZENHEBEZLROIBER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons

EENCEXEm@HTRAZEERRAMARNKN A

paNed

Number of products and service related complaints received and

how they are dealt with

BRBANERRRBHIRFEE U REETE

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights
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Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures
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Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how

they are implemented and monitored
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Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI B7.1

B AE IR 1B
KPI B7.2

RAS 4B R I5 15787 2
KPI B7.3
M AE M IE1RB7 3

Information on:

B IERRE - ¥R -

(a)  the policies; and

(a) BR: K

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

() ETHZETABBEAZENHEBEZLROIHER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the cases

R ERRHBEITAIEERRE VD EENETHAR

HrRBE MFRER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,

how they are implemented and monitored
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Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff
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Aspect B8: Community Investment
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General Disclosure

— AR EE

KPI B8.1

B 4B KI5 13881

KPI B8.2
RA 48 A5 138 .2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.
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Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)
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Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area
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Report of the Directors
Ol

The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”) for the Year Under
Review.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components, equipment and computer products and
mobile accessories and trading of cosmetic products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), is
set out in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and “Business
review” on pages 11 to 12, of this Annual Report respectively. An analysis
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion of the Group's
environmental policies and performance, and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
as well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders are
set out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” on pages 175
and 176, "Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 127 to 133, and
“Major Customers and Suppliers” of this Report of the Directors on page
65 respectively. Detailed information on the environmental, social and
governance practices adopted by the Group is set out in the sections
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (“ESG Report”) of
this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year Under Review are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 75 and 76 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary

share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 22nd December 2023.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the Year Under Review.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 7th August
2024 to 12th August 2024, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 6th August 2024.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 16th August
2024 to 20th August 2024, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 29th August 2024. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
15th August 2024.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year Under Review are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year Under Review are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year Under
Review amounted to approximately HK$5,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year Under Review are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.
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Report of the Directors
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year Under
Review. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company's listed shares during the Year Under Review.

Directors
The directors who held office during the Year Under Review and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric and Mr. Ip Fu Wa,
Benthony, are required to retire by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.3 of the Code, the length of tenure (i.e.
serving more than nine years as an independent non-executive director
of a company) is one of the factors in determining the independence of
an independent non-executive director, and the further appointment of
an independent non- executive director shall be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the company.
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Notwithstanding Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric (“Mr. Ku”) has served as an INED
for more than 13 years since 25th May 2011, the Board is of the view that
his independence is not affected by his long service as Mr. Ku met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Ku
is also independent from the business operations of the Company and he is
not related to any of the Directors, controlling or substantial shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Ku has from time to time provided independent
advice to the Board and continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to
his role as an INED throughout the past years. The Nomination Committee
and the Board have considered his contributions and services to the
Company and reviewed his expertise and professional qualifications and
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to determine
whether Mr. Ku satisfies the selection criteria of the nomination policy of
the Company. Both the Board and the Nomination Committee believe that
he possesses the required character and integrity to act as a director of
the Company. Hence, the Board considers that Mr. Ku as independent and
recommends the re-election of Mr. Ku as an independent non-executive
director at the upcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 8th August 2003, which
had expired on 7th August 2013. No share option scheme has been adopted
by the Company afterwards.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in # 3% & FETB A BRI A K &%
Equity and Debt Securities s 77 Z HE fi

As at 31st March 2024, the interests and short positions of each director R-_Z-_WNFE=FA=+—H AQAIKEENE
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares, ZTIHA B AR EBE A THARRQ T K EH G
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated E(F&EBEFERBEEO([EHREBEEG )
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures — ZEXVER) 2 R&1p - HEREAKRMD REST - HEC D
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company ~ AZRRQRIEE B4 RS KM E326FE &
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and M7 X LR A A @ D BIEE A RS ENE
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or  XVEFE7T R8N K L B ITAETEITEER S
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers — BJtZEXESPRI([H2HESPRI]) BITME A D T KB

(the “Model Code”), were as follows: FioEmRABIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company AR % ) 5 B R0, 1095 7T 2 % 4 ik

Number of shares

R B
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
R BE/ KR PN 5 REER NEER Aot
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long = 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
R EE L S (Note a)

(M¥3Ea)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long S 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BRELLT e (Note a)

(Pff5Ea)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 = = 13.50%
HEE R A "R
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long S 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
BEREE e (Note b)

(F3ED)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to 50% by

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
were deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFQ. Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same
interest and duplicated each other.

(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company owned as to
50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Wan
Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were
deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO. Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and
duplicated each other.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the Year Under Review, the Company had adopted a Code of
Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of the view
that the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout
the Year Under Review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the Year Under Review.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts

No contracts of significance between the controlling shareholders and any
of its subsidiaries and the Group was made during the Year Under Review.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

During the Year Under Review, as far as the Board and the management
are concerned, there was no material breach or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2024, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

52 I P A 5 #9 v 2 HE g

REBEFE  ZERERRAERENE A TGRSR
REBFEMERGL -

FIBR M BB 2 &8 3 H

REEFE  REFSREEEME  AEER
BBREERITETERERLR - ABEKR
FEARBE 2 EBEREE -

F2 BB R B oAt N b A AR 2 W) AR
bR Z HE
RZE-ZNF=A=+—0H  BARRESHA
B THALT(RBEEARRESRKEZITHA
B)RAR B RABRERHDTEEREES &
B I EEXVEB SR 2 ] 359 BB Z A A R AR R Al
BoiEAR

Number of shares

R EE
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interests Percentage
BB R HR KR BREAA XEER Bk
M2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 = 45%
Sy} (Note a)
(Mt5ta)
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 = 15%
iR (Note b)
(M$5Eb)
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long = 30,000,000 15%
EMBER LT Sy (Note b)
(Kt zEb)
Notes: Hsx -
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's (a) 22 [EERTBTRABRBARGEEEEY
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. Wz | — &M E(a) ©
(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's () ER [EERFTETRABRBREAREBEELE Y

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

125 | — &5 MI 5E(b) ° Bestmark Management Limited &%
EMBR T WRERGERERS  WEZE_B -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2024, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year Under Review.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the Year Under Review, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods
to its five largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the Year Under Review attributable to
the Group's major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 10%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 29%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group’s business, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Connected Transactions

During the Year Under Review, the Group entered into certain transactions
with “related parties” in the normal course of business as defined under
the applicable accounting standards and the details of the material related
party transactions (the “Transactions”) are disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Transactions falls under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are fully
exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Exempted Connected Transactions

The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from M-Bar
Limited (“M-Bar”). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned as to 30% by Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr.
Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Yeung Kwak Leung,
Allix, all of whom being the executive directors of the Company.

On 16th September 2022, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new tenancy agreement
with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements in respect of Units 1-11 on
7th Floor, Units 14 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, and Portion of 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of one year from 1st
October 2022 to 30th September 2023 at an aggregate monthly rental of
HK$232,000.

On 26th September 2023, MHL entered into a new tenancy agreement with
M-Bar for the lease agreements in respect of Units 1-11 on 7th Floor and
Units 1-4 on 8th Floor, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East,
104 King Fuk Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and Portion of 1st
Floor and Portion of 3rd Floor of Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of one year from 1st October 2023
to 30th September 2024 at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$232,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group, storage
with ancillary office and godown for storage.
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During the Year Under Review, the Group paid rental expenses amounting
to HK$nil (Note 28) to M-Bar. On 29th February 2024, MHL and M-Bar
entered into a deed of waiver, pursuant to which M-Bar agreed to waive in
favour of MHL the rent of the abovementioned premises for the period from
1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024, amounting to HK$2,784,000.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2024 amounted to
approximately HK$61,823,000 (2023: approximately HK$63,829,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 179 and 180.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the Year Under Review were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the
re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June 2024
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Bl M7 & <t fn F 8% 5 A R A 9
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mabicon
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 77 to 178, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March
2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Wi i Tl 2

Refer to Note 2.23 and Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HRA M ISR E2.23 XM 5E5 ©

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation ~ Our
by transferring the control of promised goods to a customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for that goods.

= _=|=_

& SETKBHEERAEFPEEAGER AMEBBEE o
ﬁ 5\59% BB BZEERNAFHRE - BIERK

o

Bk

We focused on this area due to the significant volume of revenue e
transactions generated in different locations.

BRI T ERERNE IR EAERER S -
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procedures in relation to assess the recognition of revenue

included but not limited to:

EERARENABETF2FBEETRR

Understanding and evaluating the management’s controls
in respect of the Group's sales transactions from contract
approval, recording of sales based on contract terms, and
agreed with customer’s records;

THREIHEREEYE ES£EHEEXIZINES £
FEREY]  ERGNETNIEERE  RERP
AR — 3

Testing of revenue recorded covering different locations and
customers, using sampling techniques, by examining the
relevant sale invoices and goods delivery notes. In addition,
we arranged confirmations to certain customers to confirm
sales transactions with the Group; and

MAMERN  BREHMEEEZEREYRNVE
NEERESERE TR REPH M o 1N
BMMETEFLBRUERESE E5EH
HERXS + &

Testing the recognition of sales transactions close to the
end of the reporting period to assess whether those sales
transactions were recorded in appropriate accounting period
in accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policy.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T A% BCh e

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S A% BCh e

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T A% BCh e

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413

Hong Kong, 25th June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A AR

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-mE —T-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FB T FAT
Revenue Wz 5 340,579 410,421
Cost of sales SHE AR S (251,088) (304,338)
Gross profit ES ] 89,491 106,083
Other income and net gains Hipg A R Uz %58 6 2,743 5,663
Distribution and selling expenses AR SNE B (29,091) (31,519)
General and administrative expenses —RITHERER (52,879) (66,670)
Operating profit SR F 10,264 13,557
Finance costs B& B AN 8 (3,870) (4,327)
Profit before income tax BT ER AR 6,394 9,230
Income tax expense FEREY 9 (4,643) (3,961)
Profit for the year F %R F| 7 1,751 5,269
(Loss)/profit attributable to: G (1), %7
Equity holders of the Company RNABEZEFEEA (378)
Non-controlling interests SEFERE R 5,647
5,269
Loss per share attributable to FEARRFERFFEA
the equity holders of the Company during  fE{5 &A% E 48
the year
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — BEARNMEEGE) 10 (0.19)

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial ~ B EFBERERE M SRR FE1HE -

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AL G

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

Profit for the year F R A

Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hi2E (BI), WA
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — E{Z ] &E# 72182 HH
to profit or loss

Currency translation differences: B =
— Subsidiaries NG

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently BE#&# T & Ex 48582 EH
to profit or loss

Revaluation gain on property, plant and ME - BEREEZEHERE
equipment

Other comprehensive expense for FREMEPEFX
the year, net of tax (BEHBREIE)

Total comprehensive expense 2 HFAXAE

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEE2E (X)) AL
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company RARERFAA

Non-controlling interests e

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

2024
bt 113
HK$'000
FET

(5,777)

(4,026)

(8,502)
4,476

(4,026)

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHETT

5,269

(19,214)

450

(18,764)

(13,495)

(11,752)
(1,743)

(13,495)



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fr B B B IR DAk

As at 31st March 2024 R=—Z—mME=A=+—H

2024
—E-mF
Notes HK$'000
B 7 TERT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRR 14 48,623
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 4,952
Intangible assets mEE 16 100
Investment properties o -tES 15 5,160
Prepayments and deposits BB kIR 953
59,788
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 148,438
Trade receivables JEULE SRR 19 21,295
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  F&fI3%1E - &4 R HM
FEUGRIA 14,517
Current income tax recoverable BT U @ BN RS TR 187
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITES 20 23,658
214,095
Total assets EEHE 273,883
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables JERT B SR 21 15,203
Other payables and accruals Hib R ZIE R ERTE F 16,078
Contract liahilities AENBE 1,106
Loan from a shareholder R ER 22 39,000
Lease liabilities HEBRE 14 3,767
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 23,145
Current income tax liabilities BVERFRIS T & fE 1,153
99,452
Net current assets REEETE 114,643
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTEBAR 174,431

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH

2023
—Eo=F
HK$'000
FHET

51,811
8,468
137
5,196
1,945

67,557

165,939
38,119

17,992
52
30,434

252,536

320,093

30,232
22,088
1,023
31,000
5,107
44,804
629

134,883

117,653

185,210
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fr B B B IR DAk

As at 31st March 2024 R=—Z—mME=H=+—H

2024 2023
—E-NmEF —E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 7 TERT FAT
Non-current liabilities EREBEE

Other payables H i e 308 28(c) 2,598 2,669
Bank borrowings RITIEE 23 2,643 4,820
Deferred tax liabilities EERHIEEE 24 1,208 1,200
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 1,334 3,847
1,783 12,536
Net assets EERE 166,648 172,674

Capital and reserves attributable to AATEREFE ARG

the equity holders of the Company R R

Share capital A% 7R 25 20,000 20,000
Reserves i 93,025 103,527
113,025 123,527
Non-controlling interests EERER 53,623 49,147
Total equity ERBEE 166,648 172,674

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for GEMBEREXEN T -_MEA-_+HAEE
issue by the Board of Directors on 25th June 2024 and signed on its behalf ~ E&#t ERFENZ  TH T EERXRESS
by: %BE

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL

HalE BEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
F/E & EEHFRITIRAES,

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e R

For the year ended 31st March 2024 HZE—Z —NF=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2022 RIZ--EmA-AzER 20000 16,706 800 (13,680] hU0 108313 17219 0890 188,169
Total comprehensive (expense))  £R2E(FR)/MALE
income for the year - - - (11.824) 450 (378 (11,75 (1783 (13,499)
Dividends of the Company: KRERE
2022 final dividend “E-CERERE - - - - - (1,000) (1,000) - (1,000)
2023 interim dividend “E-CEhHERS - - - - - (1,000) (1,000) - (1,000)
Balance at 31st March 2023 W-B-=E=B=t-Rz
iy 20,000 16,706 800 (25,504) h5%0 10593 103577 9147 172604
Representing; BER
2023 final dividend “ECCERERS 1,000
Others i 104,93
105,935

BEREEEERAT - —T-=/"T-_NEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i = —Z — U =H=+—H 1t

FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREEEARL
Reserves
fife
Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation Revaluation  Retained Total controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  reserves interests equity
R ROEE RARE BERE EMRE BEER REST FRRER RRAR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
Tén TEr TEx TR TEx TR TEx TER  THEn
(Note 25) (Note(i])  (Note(ii))  (Noteiii))
(zE2s) (W) CRYaRG)) (e
Balance at 1st April 2023 RIZZZEMA-BzER (25,504) 550 10585 10350 i 176
Total comprehensive (expense)/  ER2E(RR)/UAL%E
income for the year (3,669) (4,891) (8,502) 4,476 (4,026)
Dividends of the Company: ARARE:
2023 inal dividend ZRICERBRE (1,000) (1,000) (1,000)

2024 interim dividend

Balance at 31st March 2024 W-B-ME=R=t+-RAz

&8
Representing; iy
2024 final dividend “E-MERSRE
Others Hip

Note (i): Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the
reorganization which took place on 18th April 2001.

Note (ii): The translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the

translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional

currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency.

Note (iii): The revaluation reserve comprises accumulated gains and losses arising on

the revaluation of leasehold properties that have been recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Blaliigk

As at 31st March 2024 A —ZE —PUF=A=+—H

Notes

BiiE

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations
Overseas income tax paid

Overseas income tax refunded

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

REXBEECRERE
REEBEL ZREFH
EREINTEH
BINTSTRT
EREBMEB

26

Net cash from operating activities

REEBELE 2REIFH

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets

REFHELEZRERE

Y eil)st

BEWME  BELRE

HEME - BE R
RIS TR

BEELEE

Net cash used in investing activities

RETHPHM R FHA

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders

Loan from a shareholder

Repayments of loan from a shareholder
Repayments of lease liabilities
Repayments of bank borrowings
Proceeds from bank borrowings

BMETBHELZRERE
ERFE
BERTARABRRZBE
EEBRER
BEEHERE
1%“

TR

2R
1TEEFSE0R

D]]

_u Aﬂﬁ

Net cash used in financing activities

BEEBEA RS FE

2024
—EoNmE
HK$'000
TR

26,027
(3,761)

(312)

21,954

(3,870)
(2,000)
11,100
(3,100)
(6,003)
(69,640)
46,195

(27,318)

2023
—Eo=F
HK$'000
FHET

48,285
(3,722)
116
(64)

153
(18,007)

1
(76)

(17,929)

(4,327)
(2,000)
2,000
(1,000)
(7,795)
(126,347)
110,103

(29,366)

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Blaiiigk

As at 31st March 2024 R=—Z—mME=H=+—H

2024
—E-mEF
Note HK$'000
ik TET
Net decrease in cash and ReRAGEEYRD FE
cash equivalents (5,996)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FYrHEeRESEEY
the year 30,434
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE) s 2 (780)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZBESRBALEEY

the year

20

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

2023
—Eo=F
HK$'000
FHET

(2,680)

34,162

(1,048)

30,434



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

2.1

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic components, electrical components
and equipment and computer products and mobile accessories and
trading of cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —WF = A =+—HIFE

2 Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1st April 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
model Rules

Amendments to HKAS Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

2.1

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 —
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred on or
after 1st April 2022; and

(ii) the Group also, as at 1st April 2022, recognized a deferred
tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilized) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary difference
associated with right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group's financial position and performance.

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

2.1

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of
the abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF”) —
Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong which
are ohliged to pay LSP to employees under certain circumstances.
Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory MPF contributions to the
trustee who administers the assets held in a trust solely for the
retirement benefits of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP
against an employee’s accrued retirement benefits derived from
employers” MPF contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR
gazetted the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers” mandatory MPF contributions to
offset severance payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition
will officially take effect on 1st May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead of the
date of termination of employment) is used to calculate the portion
of LSP in respect of the employment period before the Transition
Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that
provides accounting guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism
and the impact arising from the abolition of the mechanism. In light
of this, the Group has implemented the guidance published by the
HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation retrospectively so
as to provide more reliable and more relevant information about
the effects of the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism.

By following the guidance, the Group has therefore changed its
accounting policy and ceased to apply the practical expedient and
reattribute the deemed employee contributions on a straight-line
basis from the date when services by employee first lead to their
benefits in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance with HKAS
19 paragraph 93(a). The cumulative effect of recognized these
adjustments as of 31st March 2023 and for the year ended 31st
March 2024 was not material and hence no material impact has
had on the retained profits, or another component of equity for the
prior periods and current year.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

2.1

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and HKAS 28

and its Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
c Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2025.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

2 Basis of Preparation and Material

Accounting Policies continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position to state whether the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group’s and the

Company’s results of operations and financial position.

2.2  Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in

equity and statement of financial position respectively.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

2.2
221

(a)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
business, the equity interests issued by the Group, the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.
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2.2
221

(a)

(b)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration
is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognized in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

2.2
221

(b)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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2.2
222

2.3

2.4
(a)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.
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2.4
(b)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the
net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
“finance costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within “general and administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non- monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive
income.
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2.4
(c)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognized in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4
(d)

2.5

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non- controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
properties, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “general and administrative
expenses”.
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2.6

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of certain
lease properties are recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognized
in profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in profit or loss.
Decrease that reverse previous increases of the same asset are
first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of
the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases
are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's
original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation reserve to
retained profits.
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2.6

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings

Leasehold properties
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

20 years

25 to 60 years
4 t0 10 years
410 10 years
4 10 6 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Certain lease properties are recognized at fair value based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation. A revaluation surplus is
credited to other reserves in shareholders’ equity.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.7
(i)

(ii)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Licenses

Separately acquired licenses are shown at historical cost. Licenses
acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.
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2.8

2.9
(a)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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2.9
(b)

(c)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (the “FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as financial assets at amortized cost.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income and net gains together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are included in general and
administrative expenses.
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2.9
(c)

(d)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group's management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
loss associated with its debt instruments carried at amortized
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
3.1 details how the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. For other
receivables, impairment is measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then impairment
is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.
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2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and excludes borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventories are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandize sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivahles are recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains
rights to receive consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to
the customer. The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognized as contract
assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognized as contract liabilities if the measure of
the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.

2.14

2.15

2.16

B AL UE K HOK €& EBUR (2)

BT R B R B A R 2 F g KA
Rz S (EFT 1S SRIR Z HUR (ENER B
B) e

JRE Aok B 0 MR sk B Lt £k sk

ZECRERNMREELEERNERAAR
SEREHEZERRRBRTRE W
&8 5 MRk R B AL A SRR — F 3k
FREEEAIBM(RDERE 2 —REE
BHS - AAER)  AIDBRRDE
& BRI EERBABTZT -

P B 55 58 3K £ 4t A SRR 1R A
TERR - H A B 8O R
it -

HREERG AR
EAKEEEPRIVANRK  NEEE
ESREEPWEBNAEZERN - WAER
EmBRTEFIAMEFRERKZE
MEME - ZERFNEBHEEZEAE
HELFEESFRE - MR FRER
BANEBENEE2EOBEME - 5
EFRHR T RANEBRTEMSHRTED
B MAHREE UHMIRANE
Ee Bk MFAEMSHRTENELEE
B EMBHTEN  MEH/RE
YHERRAHAE -

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH

105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —WF = A =+—HIFE

2.17

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as
finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the
entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.18

2.19

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

° the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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2.20

(a)

(b)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount
or the expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and at the time
of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2.20
(b)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilized and a deferred tax liahility for all taxable
temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognized for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

2.20
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2.20
(c)

2.21
(a)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(a) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liahilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed employee
contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a)
and it is measured on a net basis. The estimated amount of future
benefit is determined after deducting the negative service cost
arising from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees, which are
deemed to be contributions from the relevant employees.
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2.21
(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non- market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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2.22

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
ohligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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2.23

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of control to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services.

(a)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when control
over such products is transferred, being when the products
are delivered or shipped, the customer has accepted the
products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the
specified location and the risk of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognized when the Group has
received deposits from the customers. The Group records
these as other payables and accruals in advance in
the liahilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. Such contract liability is recognized as
revenue when such goods are delivered to customers.
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2 Basis of Preparation and Material

Accounting Policies continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired receivables is recognized using the original
effective interest rate.

(c) Service income, management fee and commission income
are recognized over time based on the actual service
provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

(d) Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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2.24

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Lease

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of- use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.24

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Lease (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included
in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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2.24

2.25

Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies continued)

Lease (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's
useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not
to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without
a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and
small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(Note 27). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2  Basis of Preparation and Material 2 ZRBEEBERTEKXEGFIBOR 2

Accounting Policies continued)

2.26 Government grants 2.26 BUNHIB
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value WAl & B RFH W IHE RAEER
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be A A MEES - BIBRSmATIERA
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. FEMRER o
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized BB BT K TIRE - W
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them R EE B TEHENKARES TS
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. B B AR R 2R R R o

2.27 Related parties 2.27 BBAL
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (a) REATSHEFERREXE REAR

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b)
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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2 Basis of Preparation and Material
Accounting Policies(continued)

2.27 Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. The Group's
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group's operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

3.1
(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMBEEERMHe)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)
Market risk (continued) (a) R ()
Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) & 5 Jm B (48 )
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting TRERPIRE B EA WA H & H 4
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates, B AEEHRMNEETEXRTES
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit (due to By  JRE(REKEERBERYF
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). B&g) -
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
currency rate and equity
INESTE = & RS
EFH (T 8 Cd)
% HK$'000
FHET
2024 —E-ME
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD W a iETlE
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD {3 &% ¥ =t FHE
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD Wi b3 T 2 TEz A
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD W b3 T =L HHE
If South African Rand weakens against USD W IER S N R (E
If South African Rand strengthens against USD {4 FEBS 15 H E T HE
2023 —E-=F
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD HEF e ErTlE 5% (571)
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD {4 &% 5 E T THE -5% 571
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD WFT I T H 2T E 5% (71)
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD S N T H =T HHE -5% 71
If South African Rand weakens against USD MR RSN ETRE 5% (618)
If South African Rand strengthens against USD {4 &3 3ER45 X2 T AHE -5% 618
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

3.1
(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, expressed in Hong Kong dollar, was as follows:

i
- Sl }:3

RMB USD  ZAR SGD  EUR

AR®  En BEEE FmBn 0 EE

HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
Tén Thrn Thz TEn Thx
Trade receivables ERE HE 6,685
Cash and bank balances B4 R84 6,459
Trade payables ENBRER 210
Bank borrowings ROER 3

(i)

(iii)

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years
ended 31st March 2024 and 2023.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed-rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
and lease liabilities have been disclosed in Note 23 and Note
14(b) to the consolidated financial statements respectively. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policies.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.
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WA - LABITER - SIEA
023
—E-CF
Others RMB USD IAR SGD ER  Others
i ARE  Er EHER M BB Ep
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TRrn T TEr Tér TExr TR TEn

(iii)

9738 153 137M4 49 1971730
109 6306 5006 1399 3645

49 4T 12970 - 1B b1
- - 06 M 30 -
BT8R
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (continued) (i)

Interest expense on financial liability not measure at FVTPL:

S0 % I8 B 4 PR )

o 5 e PR 6 (4%

A ERE ()

B m B R A FEFERSG ()
TRATEHABRHEOERAMBN
FEEY

2024 2023
—E-EF T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHAT

Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR ENSRBE 4,327

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group's equity.

TRERHABEGESERFIE - X
SEEMNCERHFIEREEZHZE)RA
SEESHMNEATRERGBEZHNK

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit

in foreign and
currency rate equity

SEER ril)sE £
EA/(FE)  #m/ (D)
% HK$°000

TAT

2024 —E-ME

Floating rate borrowings EEEE

Floating rate borrowings EEEE

2023 —EZ=F

Floating rate borrowings FEEE 50 (249)
Floating rate borrowings TEEE (50) 249

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

3.1
(b)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its financial assets
at trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, and cash and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, and cash and bank balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited
at medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. The existing counterparties
do not have default in the past. Therefore, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for impairment of
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on nature of customer accounts and shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

3
3.1
(b)

5 % 8 B 4 PR )

o 5 L i I 2 (42

EBRRB

REET EKESER - ik SE
RiES  URBSRBITEBSAER
HRSMAECERAR - BRESE
% HtERSIERIES AR SRR
TS EEIEAAEERSRMEERK
Ty BAEERR -

AEBERAERTREGFAEFZEE
R NEKX  REASBEBERKBY
FRRP AR ETRTT - BEEERY
TEELAHFIRAMER Z2ENE
AREBEX -BEHFITBELEERLE
8% o At - CHEEZREBBRLTERX -

REBEERTEMBRELERIFEIRATET
R RETERBREEBEREL
BB RREANEIARKESRX
RAZHAMEEEBELRERE -
RIERBAEEEE  EREXEBER
2\ B 5 0 FE B B B R oy A o AR [E
BETELDN  XRBFIEFEBEER
GREMEEBRR T EREES - A
ZEAIGHAENAEBNAELEER -

RIERMEEEE  BREZENRS
REEFKREMEMLBEERBREE
AR EHHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

5

3.1
(b)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31st March 2024 and 2023
was determined as follows for trade receivables:

2024

Collective assessment
(based on due dates)

0-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-120 days

121-180 days

181-365 days

SEEERBIER)

TENH
31E60H
61%290H
91E120H
1212180H
181%2365H

Lifetime
expected
loss rate
2HTEH
S
%

o 5 R B 4 B )

WE B & (&)

BRIk (&)

BREZEE  RZEOFER=ZZT==F
ZAZt+—RAZEWESRAEIEEE
BEMT :

—E_NF
Gross Lifetime Net
carrying expected carrying
amount  credit loss amount

2HEM
REAE FEFR KREFE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET

2023
Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
£ -IEEL Z HTE HY

BiEx RE&E EEEE AREHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET

Collective assessment £ (R E R )

(based on due dates)

0-30 days TZE30H 2.3% 34,150 (799) 33,351
31-60 days 31E60H 4.1% 1,548 (63) 1,485
61-90 days 61Z290H 5.7% 2,121 (121) 2,000
91-120 days 91%120H 18.0% 795 (143) 652
121-180 days 12121808 19.1% 230 (44) 186
181-365 days 181£365H 62.4% 1,183 (738) 445
40,027 (1,908) 38,119
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREENse)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)

(b)  Creditrisk (continued) (b) EEER(E)
Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable EBREZEFRESERBKRE 252 L
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable BT LABREE - R BB 2 & RHAE 2 15
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a EEE(EP BB REAKRELAREER
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure ERCRRGHEI RREEER SRR ©

to make contractual payments.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31st March 2024 KRB _NFEFR T _=F=A=1+—
and 2023 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows: BrRWESEREEREBRFIEE
B HEROT
Trade
receivables
B E SRR
2024
—EmEF
HK$'000
FHET
At 1st April 2023 RZE-=%F/MA—H
Provision B
Reversal o]
Exchange differences MEH R
At 31st March 2024 RZZE-—MFE=R=+—H
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

&)
3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMBEEERMHe)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEHEEE)
Credit risk (continued) (b) =EmEE (&)
Trade
receivables
e B FERR
2023
—EC=F
HK$'000
FET
At 1st April 2022 RZE-__FMA—H 1,666
Provision e 674
Reversal B (306)
Exchange differences [E 5 =% (126)
At 31st March 2023 RZE-_=F=A=+—H 1,908

As at 31st March 2024 and 2023, the Group has assessed that
the expected loss rate for other receivables and deposits was
immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance for other receivables and
deposits was recognized.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
and borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

(c)

RZEBE-—NEFRER=—FE-_=ZF=A=+—
A AEBFEHEMERRBERZS Y
TEHEBERYTER - At WERE
ftb FE NS R 5 & WE R ES 1B A o

REE LA
EZRAERDECEREE &K
B YEHEHEERDECEAREE
mE o NEEAEEZES  fHEE
HESIRPECEEFTE - AEEE
BREAREFBEREEREERE  BE
ERBANERRSREARAES®
BENRBEMNIHER EERPES
[\ o
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREENse)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MEEEEEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mBELEMEE)

AEBeREERBBENRS BHRS
HIRBRIRRERRT B 2 BB AT

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

128

Weighted ~ Ondemand  Between  Between Total Total
average  orwithin 1and? 2and 5 Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year years years Syears  cashflow amount
il BEX ABRRS

8  d-Fn -2-F  CERE BRRE  fEME  RE4H
% HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T Tm T Tkn ThAL Thn

i} ZBopE
Trade payables EREAER 15,203 15,203 15,203
Other payables and accruals AR 2R 16,078 18,676 18,676
Loan from a shareholder REET 39,000 39,000 39,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 6.74 123 6,060 5101
Bank borrowings BiTkE [ B 26,180 25,188
9.9 105119 103,768

03 It
Trade payables ERE55H 30232 - - - 0.2 302
(ther payables and accruals EERTERET 2R 22,088 2,669 - - U157 2,757
Loan from a shareholder Rz& 31,000 - - - 31,000 31,000
Lease liabiities HEER 521 5478 334 100 - 10232 8,954
Bank borrowings BfifE 6.26 553 1645 30 - 50,880 19,624
134731 1548 4 N A A 1%
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

3.2

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including loan from a shareholder
and bank borrowings) less cash and bank balances.

S0 % I8 B 4 PR )

25 A e 5 7

AEEERERY BIEAREREET
SECE YRS R AR IR H D 5
RAHMEREE ABEFRRE > URR
BREAREELURES SRA -

REFRABELERE  AEEAHE
FMERRENZBREEE  MRREREE
ARBETHRAEEEERE °

AEBREERBLRERERN - It
ENEEHFERUEEBENE - &
BERDREEAB(BERERERER
TRE)RAS RRITHEMRE

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at REEBZKBHEFEIE R-ZTZMOF
31st March 2024 and 2023 were as follows: M—ZE-_=ZFZA=+—HZEEAR
PR
2024 2023
—EB-ImF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Total borrowings ek 64,788 80,624
Less: Cash and bank balances B BRe MIRITHE R (23,658) (30,434)
Net debt B1555 41,130 50,190
Total equity s 166,648 172,674
Gearing ratio BEBREHE 24.7% 29.1%
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.3  Fair value estimation 33
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined

as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level
3).

At 31st March 2024 and 2023, the Group did not have any financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

3.4 Financial instruments by category 3.4
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

5 % 8 B 4 PR )

O P H st
TRBEETEDTAAFEIES S
BITHE - ZERATWHOT :

. HREESRBBEELEMS 2R
BOREHAB)(E—H -

. BRE-—RBREZHREIN  TEE
(BNIRE&) sk # (BB B A& 1T
EVBRMBrEERBERAE
(B=#) -

. YIKBERABMHEIEZE
EXBBEBAECAIBRAEE
NE)(E=H) -

KRB NWNFER T -_=ZF=A=+—
A AEBWELAIZ ERAFEFE
BRFFEZEMEERERE -

FR F—FK FIRRE=HZHEL
BEMNERTHEEEY -

HOE R B4 2 & TR
RBEEH SEMTAERZEEE
mF

2024 2023
—E-mEF -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

27,295 38,119
3N 4,275
23,658 30,434

Financial assets cREE

Financial assets at amortized cost RHENAEZ CREE
— Trade receivables — W E ZERR

— Other receivables and deposits —Hi WA RIES

— Cash and bank balances —Re RFTEH
Financial liabilities 2REE

Liabilities at amortized cost REHEKAHEZBE

— Trade payables —ERE SRR

— QOther payables and accruals —Hib R RIE R ERTE A
— Loan from a shareholder —REER

— Lease liabilities -HEaiE

— Bank borrowings —RITEE

15,203 30,232
18,676 24,757
39,000 31,000

5,101 8,954
25,788 49,624
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

(@)

(b)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of receivables

The provision of impairment for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses significant judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1(h).

(a)

(b)

K& Wt il at A A B

AEBERFERBERRIEMER - 8
EREBBEATHEEHRRERNE
IBYRE - FPARAEE A -

AEBEBRBEL AT RER - BRE
& FH 2@t AFTRZARINERH
BERER - TXAWBRAATRESERT
—EMRFEFEZEERAREREERE
HEARFE 2 At RRR -

Rz v B
FEZAZRFE/BEEBKBEDME
SHEBR AT ZAET AR HEM
EBUEZMARERZNIE - ZEM
SANRBERTTAREUEEERZ B
EHELREL - EPRREFRBF
BF 219 ARGHAELERE
B -EEEREREHREEAEHT
[EEAAEEN

JRE Wik Y 2 DA
TREERERBDREBEORRZR
RERFEHMEREMETE - £FEHZER
RIEDGEREZBARER - AF
BAFERAERNHAE - BREAEHTERK
SEBEESL - RITMHBERARR
BEERESHHEAE RO HEMIE
he FERZBARBR B ABEZH
TEDAPRRES. 1 (b) 3R
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

©

(d

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group's leasehold properties and investment
properties are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The board of directors of the Company have to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

In estimating the fair value of certain leasehold properties and
investment properties, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages independent qualified valuer to perform the
valuation. At the end of each reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the independent qualified valuer to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 fair value measurement. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable quoted
prices in the active market. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the board of directors of the Company. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of the Group's certain leasehold properties and
investment properties are disclosed in Note 14(a) and Note 15
respectively.
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5

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

We 25 K 43 R
FRER 2 W= T -
2024 2023
—EIEF —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Revenue Wzx
Sales of electronic components, HWESFITHF &

electrical components and equipment =
Sales of computer products, mobile accessories
and service income
Sales of cosmetic products

ARFUA
HE LA

HEBMER - THRAEMFAR

223141 272,644

67,835 80,129
49,603 57,648

340,579 410,421

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
The Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic and Electrical Trading
Business — Distribution of electronic components, electrical
components and equipment; (ii) Computer Business — Retail sales
of computer products, mobile accessories, distribution of computer
products and provision of IT outsourcing and solution services; and
(iii) Cosmetic and Online Retail Business — Trading and retail and
distribution of cosmetic products through retail shops and online
channels.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses and finance costs.

ARRDHEERRRMITESR([RITE
FDRTERERRE - WITEFCHE
BIAREE 2 ARHmE  UFEERRED
BRER: RENTCREZFREEEL
BOE e MITESERERARE D
EZEEGMCHE=BE2EH A2
KRR (|EF BERTMHEEES -
BFLM  ERTMRES (I)EKE
B-EREMRTFREHZTERSE -2
HEMEMMEREMBRRMINE &
BER T RRH - Rlifbim k@ LETE
EB-BBTEEHRPLREEE
TERD#HCH®

HITEFERBHBREERAIEBMEK
A2 D BEEFAEREN W REA -
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SR A B R B

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information 5 WHERSFER 2

(continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2024 are as BHE_T_ME=A=+—HIEFEZ
follows: DEPEBIT :
Electronic
and
Electrical Cosmetic and
Trading Computer Online Retail
Business Business Business Total
ET ER fbizm &
THEE PLEE
%  ERER %% act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT
Revenue from external customers RENREFE 2 W 223,141 67,835 49,603 340,579
Time of revenue recognition Wik T AR e
— At a point in time —RE—EE 223141 65,572 49,603 338,316
— QOver time -R—BERA - 2,263 - 2,263
223141 67,835 49,603 340,579
Segment results DEEE 10,069 144 63 10,276
Unallocated expenses APEHEX (12)
Finance costs AR (3,870)
Profit before income tax BR AT B AT R 6,394
Income tax expense (Note 9) FrfEHiF % (FE9) (4,643)
Profit for the year FEREF 1,751
Other segment items included in the HipIAGABHR

consolidated statement of profit or loss D EFABIT :
are as follows:

Amortization of intangible assets BREE#E
Depreciation of property, nE - BEREBERE
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
Gain on disposal of property, HEME « BE KRG KR
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of EWE S RTNERE
trade receivables 81
Reversal of provision for impairmentof ~ FEUWE BTN EREEE
trade receivables (744)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of & $5E & RE (M) /&
slow-moving inventories (3,990)
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SR BA B AR B

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information 5 WHERSFER 2

(continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2023 are as BE_T_=F=A=+—HILFEZ
follows: DEFERMOT
Electronic
and
Electrical Cosmetic and
Trading Computer  Online Retail
Business Business Business Total
EF ER fbfm&k
THEE RETE
% BEEB ES) w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THT THT
Revenue from external customers REMREF 2WE 272,644 80,129 57,648 410,42
Time of revenue recognition Wk T RR e
—Atapointin time ~-RE—EH 272,644 70,427 57,648 400,719
— Over time -R—BEEA - 9,702 - 9,702
272,644 80,129 57,648 410,421
Segment results DEEE 11,244 366 1,949 13,559
Unallocated expenses AREHZ (2)
Finance costs BERAK (4,327)
Profit before income tax BR AT B AT R 9.230
Income tax expense (Note 9) FfEHF % (F39) (3,961)
Profit for the year FEREF 5,269
Other segment items included in the HipIAGABHR
consolidated statement of profit or loss D EFABIT :
are as follows:
Amortization of intangible assets B EESY 51 - - 51
Depreciation of property, nE - BEREBRE
plant and equipment 1,180 44 236 1,460
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FCRELSENE 2,529 2,936 2,317 1,182
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERZEEE
plant and equipment 6 - - 6
Provision for impairment of FEWE S RTNERE
trade receivables 657 8 9 674
Reversal of provision for impairment of ~ FEUE 5B UM EREE[E
trade receivables (304) (2) - (306)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of & $4E&RE (M) /&
slow-moving inventories (813) 338 87 (388)
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information 5 WHERSFER 2

(continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, PHEEFTZBEYE  BEERE -
right-of-use assets, investment properties, intangible assets, EREEE REVE BEEE @&
goodwill, inventories, trade and other receivables and cash 2. FE - EWE SRR R EBGKR
and bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise certain other HUARBR S RIBITHES - ROMEER
receivables. R T Eqth pE U R IE -
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated DHEBEELRLCEAE ROEEER
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals. FHEMENRIBEREFEBRAFIER o
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, REIRDEEBREAEDE - BER
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets. B CRAEEEREBREAE -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2024 and RIEZNFE=A=+—H2Z2oPEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as RBEUREEZBLEFEZERDE
follows: EREMT
Electronic Cosmetic
and and
Electrical Online
Trading  Computer Retail
Business  Business  Business Unallocated Total
ETF -ER fetmRk
THEE fLree
£% BEEXK 5% RO @ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET
Assets BE 239,935 18,375 14,078 273,883
Liabilities £ 91,211 5,999 5,937 107,235
Additions to non-current assets  SREBIERESE 3,609 1,209 47 4,865
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information 5

(continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2023 and
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as

W g K o BB E B )

RZB-=F=A=+—Bz2oHNEE
FPEBEUAREEZBEFEZERBE

follows: ERBWT :
Electronic Cosmetic
and and
Electrical Online
Trading ~ Computer Retail
Business Business Business  Unallocated Total
EF - EBR fethm &
THEER BETE
%% BEREB E37 AOEC FeEy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL TAT
Assets BE 277,461 22,602 17,862 2,168 320,093
Liabilities =0 122,908 10,567 9,858 4,086 147 419
Additions to non-current assets  RE GBI EE 21,675 2,766 1,843 - 26,284

The Group’s revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia
Pacific, South Africa and Europe.

AEBZHESETEREEFS  EAM
B FIEREM

Revenue

Hong Kong (country of domicile)

Asia Pacific
South Africa
Europe

Other countries

Y is

BB (EMERER)
DRME

Bk

BOM

HiBR

2024 2023
—EClF —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
153,179 187,121
59,697 81,436
119,448 132,145
7,880 8,950

375 769

340,579 410,421

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is

located.

Wtk BEFRAEBERDE -
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information 5

W gi e o 5B E B )

(continued)

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Total assets BERE
Hong Kong B 94,189 116,628
Asia Pacific o5 A M & 37,431 47,399
South Africa EZE: 117,060 129,080
Europe B 23,708 24,818
272,388 317,925
Unallocated assets RAOBEE 1,495 2,168

273,883 320,093

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

BEREBREEMEMDR -

Additions to non-current assets RNEFERDEE
Hong Kong B

Asia Pacific 25K &

South Africa EZEL:

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
4,720

1,654

19,910

26,284

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific, South Africa and Europe are
approximately HK$2,035,000, HK$11,057,000, HK$33,938,000 and
HK$11,805,000 respectively (2023: approximately HK$4,220,000,
HK$12,060,000, HK$36,910,000 and HK$12,422,000 respectively).
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —NF = A =+—HILFE

(a)

(b)

Revenue and Segment Information 5 RS HER =)
(continued)
Information about major customers PR 2% E B
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for Bz T _NWER_ZE_=F=A
the years ended 31st March 2024 and 2023. =+ —HLEMEFE  BERL (k=
HAFE10%S A E ©
Contract liabilities (a) EHEE
The Group has recognized the following liabilities related to AREBCHEARATINEEFANERB B
contracts with customers: &
2024 2023
—E-NE —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Contract liabilities related to sales of BHES Tl -
electronic components, electrical BRITEREREEL
components and equipment BHAE 143
Contract liabilities related to sales of HFEBMNER
computer products, mobile accessories F AL 1 R BRFEUA
and service income BHlzahar 880
1,023
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers AHBEERNARNTFTEFPZEMRTE
for goods that have not yet been delivered to the customers. As at 1451 XPZHRBB RZFTE_WMFER=FT
31st March 2024 and 2023, the contract liabilities mainly included —T=ZF=ZA=Z+—H AHEaEXE
the receipts in advance from individual customers for sales of BREREBREHLEELEINEES Ea%ﬁ
electronic components, automation parts and equipment and sales AL R ER A REETE
of computer products and mobile accessories after the end of SR F MR ETENOB S B 2 FIE o
respective reporting period.
Revenue recognized in relation to contract liabilities (b) BB EERZ W
Revenue of approximately HK$1,023,000 (2023: approximately RREPVNLEBE AN EBERRZEK

HK$3,110,000) is recognized in relation to carried forward contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period.

All of the Group's remaining performance obligations for contracts
with customers are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

HHAEI102800B T (T =4 4
3,110,000% 7T ) °

AEBETFIVNAEGNNBRTE
WEEZHBREOR/—FHNUT - REE
W ELERF1RAAR - WERKED
RETZERBHAHNZIRHER -
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SR A B R B

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

6  Other Income and Net Gains 6  Hiue A Kk s

2024 2023

—E-E T o=

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

Management fee income EEBIRA 1,430

Commission income B 266

Interest income from bank deposits RITIE T BUA 153
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BER

plant and equipment FAf 2 W -

Gross rental income from investment properties &AW ¥R LA LLE 254

Government grants (note) BT B (HTsE) 3,000

Other income He g A 560

5,663

Note:  Government subsidies of approximately HK$142,000 (2023: approximately
HK$177,000) granted to a subsidiary in other jurisdiction were recognized
during the year ended 31st March 2024.

Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government,
wage subsidies of approximately HK$2,777,000 related to the Employment
Support Scheme were recognized during the year ended 31st March 2023.
SME Export Marketing Fund of approximately HK$46,000 were granted to
a subsidiary in Hong Kong during the year ended 31st March 2023.
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SR BA B AR B

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

7  Profit for the Year 7 FENER
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FRHEFE R (GTA) TH&ER
R
2024 2023
—EME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
Costs of inventories expensed FEKRARAL 243,888 295,705
Employee benefit expense (Note 12) R ERFREZ (FFE12) 51,791 58,906
Amortization of intangible assets G E 62 51
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 5,685 1,782

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - MENREITE 2,337 1,460

Provision for impairment of trade receivables JEWE ZRFREEE
(included in general and administrative expenses) (25t A —#& RITHE R

ER)

Reversal of provision for impairment of JEUE 5 RR TR (B R 7 ol
trade receivables (included in general and (BETA—MRITHER
administrative expenses) ) (867) (306)

Reversal of provision for impairment of AT ERERERD

674

slow-moving inventories (BEtAERAR)

(included in cost of sales) (4,279) (388)
Expenses related to short-term leases A E RS 2,686 6,341
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN & 1,120 1,120
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER

plant and equipment HiBEE 6
Net foreign exchange gain [E B F 58

(included in general and administrative expenses) (B & A—M RITHEE

BH) (2,970)
8 Finance Costs 8 RLEMA
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEZ RIS 3,598
Interest expense on lease liabilities HERBE 2 MEFRX 729
4,327
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SR A B R B

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

9 Income Tax Expense 9
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2023:16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Ffe 15 58 B ¢

AREERBEFARTBELRRLE
2 BB R B R 165% (B ==
6 165%) 2 BE BB EBFIEH < 85
32 ) 2 BT B AR 4 PO fi A8 R B A
AEEEEEH BREE 2 BEY -

2024 2023
—E_UFE ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
F& T TFET
Current income tax BUHAFT1S 1
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBFIEH 167
— Overseas taxation —BHNEIIE 4,018
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years —BEFERETR
(EBEERME) (24)
4,161
Deferred tax expense/(credit) FEFRERY(FR)
— Overseas taxation —BHNEIIE (200)
Income tax expense PSR 3,961
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —NF = A =+—HILFE

9 Income Tax Expense (continued) 9

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

Fifs BEBH X ()
AEBEBRAEHIEF 2 HEERAS
BRESRBEEFESH 2 EREETED
[ #HyaT

2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Profit before income tax B BTS84 Al A 9,230
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BEBFEHBEIL%(ZE
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) Z=F 1 165%)FHE 2 HIE 1,523
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEREEZNB AT
subsidiaries operating in other countries RATRAMEz Z 2 1,172
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose A< AT N B = At 7 = 28 759
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BARBRANRBEZE (889)
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized HAER B RRREERE 1.417
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses BRLAIN AR HIEER (34)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETT,
(BEERE) (24)
Tax concession THIBE (182)
Others Hit 219
Income tax expense PSRRI 2 3,961

As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda,
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035.

As at 31st March 2024, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$103,744,000 (2023: approximately
HK$93,377,000) available for offset against future profits
(subject to the approval of the relevant tax authorities).
Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$99,438,000 (2023: approximately HK$91,195,000) may be
carried forward indefinitely in Hong Kong and approximately
HK$4,306,000 (2023: approximately HK$2,182,000) will expire
within 5 years under other jurisdiction. No deferred tax asset
had been recognized in respect of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

HRARB AR ERETMARILZEHR
AT HERLAMNERENHEEE
—T=RF-

R-ZT-WE=F=+—08 A&EEx
KREVA T IEET 1B 4 5103,744,0008 T (=
T~ =4 1 #993,377,00087T) - ARAFIE
&5 18 AT 45 88 R 210 FI (B 15 A A R 7 i
FARLEBRFAIEE) - ARRARIEEER
5 E5 18 4799,438,000/8 T ( =T — =4 ¢
#791,195,0008 L) * R BB A &R H 4
2  M494,306,0008 L(ZE=F : 49
2,182,000 70 ) R EM R EEE G R A F
WEER - WER R TE B BERIET
MIBEE @ [RE ARG T8 R K 5 FI 2Rk
IR e
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —WF = A =+—HIFE

10

11

Loss Per Share 10 HBREHR
The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31st BHE—_T-_NME=A=+—HILFEZ
March 2024 is based on the Group's loss attributable to equity BRERNEBEDNERARAEREB AR
holders of the Company of approximately HK$4,891,000 (2023: AN E B 1E 494,891,000 (=T ==
approximately HK$378,000). The calculation was based on the & R9378,000 )T E - EHEETD
weighted average number of 200,000,000 (2023: 200,000,000) ERNFAEETEBRZ NEFIEH
ordinary shares in issue during the year. 200,000,000 & ( =2 — = 4 : 200,000,000
%) -
The diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share as HMRAAABIREE-_T_NFE_F
the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue —=F=A=1+— E¢W1I¢TI?%E
during the years ended 31st March 2024 and 2023. MAEESEEYE OETERR &
BREEEBRGREANEEMER -
Dividends 11 kB
2024 2023
—EME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Interim dividend paid of HK0.5 cent B AR E
(2023: HK0.5 cent) per ordinary share %ﬂt%m Al
ZTZ=F : 0581l) 1,000
Proposed final dividend of HK0.5 cent BORAR AR 2
(2023: HK0.5 cent) per ordinary share FFRS E 3B AR0.578 11
(ZZZ=%F : 05801) 1,000
2,000
At a meeting held on 28th June 2023, the directors of the Company RZE-_=ZFRNAZFTN\HETZEZ
proposed a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share in F AR RFERERRNBE_T_=
respect of the year ended 31st March 2023. FZRA=+T—BHLEFEZRHAREER
EBAR0.5 L o
At a meeting held on 25th June 2024, the directors of the Company R-_Z-_mWFEBFE-+HH 2&«72@ B
proposed a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share in o ARAEFTERRNEZE 1
respect of the year ended 31st March 2024. This proposed final F=A=+—H JJ:EJ*ZEKHHHX B AR
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial LBAR0SAE(L o LIBHEIR A R AR BT
statements. R EFTHERRIERMRE

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

12 Employee Benefit Expense

(a)

12

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

% TERHEMET
BIREHA - EB NG E

Total employee benefit expense
(including directors’ remuneration)

R B R HIF A H
(BREENE)

i B & A1l B 32
2024 2023
—E-NF —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
56,092
2,814
58,906

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Except for voluntary
contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. The
employer’s and employees’ contribution are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 (2023: HK$30,000).

Mabicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

(a)

B & — LG
REEEAEBSEELHS WA HIE
NESTE([RESHE]) - 8ES
AEITABUETEAT R EEERG
gl o REmESHE  AEEREEE
BASEREBBA(TEERRFIMELAES
FTENER) 25%F AMZTEER - R B
FEAESRASN - s FE S5t 8P W& T A 1E
WA RREE ARSI - B
FREESHKRZEAKA LR A30,0007%
JTL(ZZ =4 :30,00087T) °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. (<5
HERYLEZZHNBAR)EAEGRA
TRERHSEEBRNESE(QE
S8 c AESHEI A BRAERK
FER 2 ERERETE - BEBEAERE
g EEREEEESFREEWRACE
ER-NN—FEEREEZES)Z13%
K 11% 5 B RFZET IR o BREEFRBAGN -
REBITEARERZ M RKRS SRR
BRRANAEEE T BT - B BEBUTHEE
AARMBNEEZTRKS -
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

12
(a)

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employee’s monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group’s contributions are expensed as incurred.

The Group has arranged for its South African employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes. The Schemes is a defined
contribution plan managed by an independent trustee. Under the
schemes, each of the group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes ranging between 5% to 7.5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance.

For the year ended 31st March 2024 and 2023, there were no
forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees
who leave the retirement scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) be used to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 13
Emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2024 is set out below:

Name of director E=ng Fees
e
HK$'000
TERT
Executive directors HTES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HRERT(FE)
(chairman)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEELL
(deputy chairman and (BIFERITHAEH)
chief executive officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEELE
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BEREE
Independent non-executive BIFHITES

directors
Mr. Ip Fu Wa Benthony (Note b)
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

EEEnt (M)
REFEL
EkKERE

ERLERITBABZME

BE_ZT_NF=ZA=+—HILFE "
BEBEERETBTRABZBEHIOT ¢

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances  contributions
and other to defined
benefits contribution
in kind scheme Total
e 2R EHEMAR
HiEY TEZ
& EEMHR Hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER TER

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 13 #FHETFTEITHABZME
Emoluments (continued) (%)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BHE_Z-_=F=A=+—RHILFE -
year ended 31st March 2023 is set out below: EEERFETBRABZHMEHI AT ¢
Salaries, Employer's
allowances  contributions
and other to defined
benefits  contribution
Name of director EEnAF Fees in kind scheme Total
E2 A= 3:4 EHEMR
HithEY T8z
ok &7 EEHM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TET TER
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HAREBL(FE)
(chairman) - - - -
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BRELL
(deputy chairman and (BILEF#ITHAEE)
chief executive officer) - - - -
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HRERE - - - -
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HEREE - - - -
Independent non-executive BIFBTES
directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman (Note a]  Charles E. ChapmanZt 4 (Ffita) 3 - - 33
Mr. Ip FuWa Benthony (Note b)  EZ 5 A& (i s) 47 - - 47
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung PEHET 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKEEE 80 - - 80
280 - - 280
Notes: BI5E -
(a) Mr. Charles E. Chapman has resigned as an independent non-executive (a) Charles E. Chapman 5t 4 B B (3837 JE#R7T
director with effect from 31st August 2022. ii;zi CBEZFfF/\A=FT—HEA
(b) Mr. Ip Fu Wa Benthony has been appointed as independent non-executive (b) REERECEZERBIIFNTE

director with effect from 31st August 2022. T AT -FNAS+—HBER-
RBE-ZT _HWMF=A=t+—HIF
B AEERAEE(_T_=F: N
ZIMEME S HL60000ET(ZF

During the year ended 31st March 2024, four directors (2023:

four) of the Group waived emoluments in an aggregate amount of

approximately HK$600,000 (2023: approximately HK$600,000). No

incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss T =4 : #9600,0007T) - FA - HEE

of office was paid or payable to any director during the year (2023 NRENTERES 2 RBIHAHE - 1F

Nil). BEMAKREER 2 SR BB E (=
T_=F )
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

13

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #HEETFTELBABZ#M4E
(continued) (&)
Five highest paid individuals A 1= YNSR
The five individuals with the highest in the Group for the year do FA - AEBREAERFALTERLELR
not include any executive director (2023: Nil) whose emoluments BREREMNKTES(ZT_=F : &) -
are detailed above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the BEZMEFBEHENLEX - THA(Z
remaining five (2023: five) highest paid employees who are neither To=F: AR)RFRRRESNIEFE
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: ETBRABZERHREE ZFERNEMF
BT
2024 2023
—E-ME —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Salaries, allowances and e EUMEMEDRER
other benefits in kind 3,262
Employer's contributions to MG 2 B EHT
defined contribution scheme 35
3,297

The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

ZEFHNFUTHE RS HFALS
BZBMEFE0T

Number of employees

BEAH
2024 2023
—E-E —Eo=F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2023: Nil).

FA - WERERATINBIERR
SIREMAKRIMAREE 2 2R K
ERBREE(ZTE==F &) -

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 ¥ -~ BB EXHULHE

150
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(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (a) W3k~ BB K
Freehold Furniture
landsand  Leasehold and Office Motor
buildings  properties fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
KA%E BAR BAE
i HENE %E B RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL TAL TAL TATL THEL THEL
Year ended 31st March 2023 HE-B-c=E
ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FURETE 19,335 17,528 175 674 1,004 39,316
Exchange differences EREH (4,156) (144) (78) (87) (107) (4,572)
Additions RE 16,856 - 407 551 193 18,007
Surplus on revaluation BhE% - 571 - - - 577
Disposals e - - (5) (2) - (7)
Depreciation b - (476) (366) (318) (300) (1,460)
Closing net book amount FREmEE 32,035 17,435 733 818 790 51811
At 31st March 2023 R=B-=F=A=t-H
Cost or valuation RAEREE 32,035 18,920 20,949 18,632 3,632 94,168
Accumulated depreciation BHINE - (1,485) (20.216) (17,814 (2,842) (42,357)
Net book amount REFE 32,035 17,435 133 818 790 01,811
Year ended 31st March 2024 BZE-E-_mE
ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEAFE 32,035 17,435 51,811
Exchange differences =5 (1,926) (221) (2.252)
Additions RE ] - 1,490
Surplus on revaluation EhES - L 58
Disposals HE - - (147)
Depreciation E (846) (362) (2,337)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 29,303 16,904 48,623
At 31st March 2024 R-E-mE=A=1-H
Cost or valuation RAELEE 30,143 18,733 13,125 JALY) 3478 82,631
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (840) (1,829) (12,552) (15,804) (2,983) (34,008)
Net book amount REFE 29303 16,904 573 1,348 495 48,623
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14
(continued)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) (a)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2024 and 2023
of the above assets is as follows:

(#&)

W ~ W5 Bkt (&)

P EER T _MNER_T_=F=
A=+—B2ZRAKGEITOT :

2024 —E-NE
Freehold
lands and  Leasehold Furniture Office Motor

buildings  properties and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
KA

THREF HEYE KAREE WAERE AE met

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT TET THET THERT THET FET

At cost DN 29,303 11,686 43,405

At valuation LA - WAL 5218

29,303 16,904 48,623

2023 —EB-=HF
Freehold
lands and Leasehold Furniture Office Motor

buildings properties  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
KRR

THREF HEME KRKEE PLRERE R st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TET FET TAET TET TAET

At cost DI 32,035 12,180 733 818 790 46,556

At valuation Zi4hE - 5,255 - - - 5,255

32,035 17,435 733 818 790 51,811

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2024, had the leasehold properties at revaluation
model of the Group been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying values would have been approximately
HK$2,246,000 (2023: approximately HK$2,341,000).

HEMEMNRBEBRIINTIZRPHER
ﬁo
R-TB-NWE=ZA=+—H  #HEXEH
REMERN 2 AEWETIERE LKA
ZFTITESIER - BIRRA A4 A2,246,000
BIL(ZEZ=F : 492,341,000 7T) °

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

14

(@)

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

At 31st March 2024, leasehold properties and freehold lands and
buildings with net book amount of approximately HK$19,974,000
(2023: approximately HK$20,857,000) have been pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank to subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$13,448,000 (2023: approximately
HK$14,543,000).

The fair values of the Group's leasehold properties located in
Singapore at 31st March 2024 and 2023 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Norton Appraisals Limited,
which is independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The valuations were arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuation for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuation is
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —NF = A =+—HILFE

14

(@)

(i)

(ii)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Valuation basis (continued)

Valuation processes (continued)

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(i) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for
own use as at 31st March 2024 and 2023 are classified as Level 2
valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square
feet basis using market data which is publicly available.

14

(a)

(i)

(ii)

&)

Yo ~ W et (40)
1B (A1)

e a2 ()
REEMBFER  EFE -

(i) REBUGERSTHOMELIE
WARUR

(ii) BREBEFEZMHERSEL
B HEHEMEZHEZD
K

(i) EEIHERETAR

1 B £

E’\fjflllﬁ&fjf_i A=1—

CAEERFEERZEEDEZAT
TE?%%%EZ%%:%ME{E g

BEREENEZAFENERTSLR

EEE  RE2EZEAHIZMB TS

é‘%ﬂqﬂTf#ttf%%? ¥ ITRERE
EFBEAHEERAS -
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 %3 - BB K&k i DA K AL &S

(continued) (%)
(b) Leases (b)y HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a R FREANEBEAERAAZHE
lessee. Bk} o
(i) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of (i) RSB R RER 25
financial position
2024 2023
—E_UFE —FT-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Right-of-use assets FRESE
Retail stores, office premises and TERE HAEMER
warehouses 55 8,468
Lease liabilities HEEE
Within one year —FR 5,107
Within a period of more than one year but not 88— {8 T HB:EM T
exceeding two years 3,035
Within a period of more than two years but not #2:@MEETHBBAE
exceeding five years 812
Within a period of more than five years BBRF -
8,954
Less: Amount due for settlement within B REBBEE TARR
12 months shown under current liabilities 12 NEIHEE
pfeakt] (5,107)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months EREEEE FRR
shown under non-current liabilities 2ERBIEEN S 3,847
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HEABMER ZNETIESERA
lease liabilities range from 3.2% to 8% (2023: from 2.4% to RNANF32%E8%( T -=F : NF24%
7.75%). £7.75%) °
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended RBE_ZT_NE=ZA=+—HIF
31st March 2024 were approximately HK$3,342,000 (2023: B - REEEZRNE L R3,342,0008 T
approximately HK$8,201,000). (ZZZ=4F : #98,201,00077C) °
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14

(continued)
(b) Leases (continued)

(b)

(%)
M (%)

(ii)  Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit  (ii) RESERKXER L

or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the following

amounts relating to leases:

RABRRI T EAEARZ S8

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

EREEENEMNX

Interest expense (included in finance costs)

Expenses relating to short-term leases
(included in general and administrative
expenses)

Expenses relating to variable lease payments
not included in lease liabilities (included in
general and administrative expenses)

FB R (A ARERA

e A AN %
(BE AR
AREBER)

ST ABER BN LEE

NHRABABHRA(EFA
—RETHREEER)

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

7,782

) 729
6,341

16

Note:  The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March 2024 was
approximately HK$9,134,000 (2023: approximately HK$14,881,000).

M BEZZ-_ME=A=+—BHILFE -
HEZHRSRE BT /9,134,008 7T
T4 1 #914,881,000087T) ©

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

14

(b)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted
for

The Group leases retail stores, office premises and warehouses.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 3
years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and include
a wide range of terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Variable lease payments
Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are
linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees
The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 31st March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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(b)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

15 Investment Properties 15 #EWHE
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current asset — at fair value FRBEE-RATE
Opening balance at 1st April A A— B2 &S 4,685
Exchange differences E N Z=%8 1M1
Fair value gain A FEWRZE 400
Closing balance at 31st March R=A=+—HBZF&REH 5,196
Gross rental income from WEDERS WA BEE
investment properties 254
Less: Direct operating expenses from B EERSKBAZ
investment properties that generated WEMEZEIEEE
rental income Fisz (18)
236

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March
2024 and 2023 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out by Norton Appraisals Limited, which is independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuations were arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

At 31st March 2024, investment properties with aggregate
amount of approximately HK$5,160,000 (2023: approximately
HK$5,196,000) have been pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$4,188,000 (2023: approximately HK$4,224,000).

The fair value change is included in “general and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

AEEREVENR-_T_NER=-F
T=FZ=ZRA=+—HZRAVE 2RE
BEARBYERBEZHIAERERM
EMERBERFIEERITDET ZMEE
METE - ZE[EHN2ERUNEZT
BRHERBEER

R-ZBE_WNF=A=+—H  EL5Y
75,160,000/ L (Z T = =4 : £95,196,000
BIL) 2 IREMEE IR - (EARITR
FTH B AR SR 54,188,000 T (=F
T = ¢ 49422400008 0) 2 B TERTT AR
B ZEIRR -

RNPEEHIAGEBRAR [ R RITH
EREMIAT -

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —WF = A =+—HIFE

15

(a)

(b)

Investment Properties (continued) 15 #HEME»)
Valuation basis A 4B YE
Valuation processes (a) 1EEEF
The Group obtains independent valuation for its investment AEBZRIBF-ABREREMES K
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuation is BIAGBE RAFE  EHEMGERSE
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the S EEGEMITHET RERGHLEHE
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment H EZ9FfRSHEEREMER
of the fair value of each investment property, taking into account FEZAE  EPEFREH 2B
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review B EEBHBE L AEMEL 2EE
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial AEIEH B S ERR o ER ML AR D
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results BE-REGAEEFHA M RMEE
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line BRFEER
with the Group’s annual report date.
As at 31st March 2024 and 2023, the directors: RZE-_NFER_ZE-_ZF=ZA=+—
H Efg:
(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report; (i) REBVBERSTHOREERXN
AR
(ii) Assess investment properties valuations movements when (ii) EREBTFE 2 (HERSEEL
compared to prior year valuation report; and B AIAREMEZGEZE
&
(iii)  Hold discussions with the independent valuer. (iii) B HERMETTRR °
Valuation techniques ()  1AEH
The fair value of the investment properties of the Group held to RZEZNFRZE_=F=A=+—
earn rentals as at 31st March 2024 and 2023 are classified as Level B AEBRBERRESCRENEZ
2 valuations. NHEEDERE ZRMEE -
The fair value of investment properties is determined using market ?ﬁﬁﬁ%%z/‘ﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁ)ﬂ‘ﬁ%ttﬁiﬁi
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price and rental CHE2Z0HARIMBzmIsER
of comparable properties on a price per square feet basis using q: AL BYERS T RESEES
market data which is publicly available. BRHREERES -
The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net book REBEZIREYERREEFEED
values are analyzed as follows: 2T
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Leases of 60 years: FAE604F ¢
— Properties held outside Hong Kong —IEEBIEINEE 2 5,196

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

15

(c)

(d)

Investment Properties (continued)

Valuation basis (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables present the investment properties of the
Group carried at fair value by valuation method as at 31st March
2024 and 2023:

15

(c)

Quoted prices

in active
market for
identified
assets
Level 1
EHAEE
WERT 5
ZHE
E—-&
HK$'000
FET
2024 —E-ME
Recurring fair value measurements 4814 ) A T(EE &
— Properties held outside —EBEBEINGEZ
Hong Kong S
2023 —E-=F
Recurring fair value measurements & & M e A (EH &
— Properties held outside —EBBEINSEZ
Hong Kong S -

"EWE )

AL 4 (42)

NFEEZR
TREIRZZ-_NFR-ZFT_=F=
A=+—HB®REEFZE S 2 A EEHIE
NEHEREZ B

Significant
other  Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs
Level 2 Level 3 Total
HitEX BEX

A= FHB=E
BARE wARE
ER EZHR Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT

5196 - 5,196

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Leasing arrangement

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases run for a period
of 2 years. None of the leases include variable lease payment.
For minimum lease payment receivables on leases of investment
properties are disclosed in Note 27.

(d)

AEEZHE R B E FRE
BEEEARRATESAZBARS
H oo

FRN BE—HR FZRARE=ZF AL
B -

HEZH
AEBERBLELEEHERENE - A
EEBAXN - EHEEREWE - A
WERAIZBEENK BHRRKEMERE
Z W SRR ERIBR ML 27 R E -

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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16 Goodwill and intangible assets 16 &R EE
Goodwill Licenses Total
mE  HUR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Year ended 31st March 2023 BE-—Z=-_=%
ZA=Zt+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FEYEREE - 138 138
Exchange differences fEH =% - (26) (26)
Additions NE - 76 76
Amortization charge iR - (51) (51)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE - 137 137
At 31st March 2023 R-ZE-=F=A=+—H
Cost RAME 174 297 4
Accumulated amortization and R ORE
impairment (174) (160) (334)
Net book amount SR FHAE - 137 137
Year ended 31st March 2024 BE-—=-—_mE
ZA=t+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE
Exchange differences =R
Additions NE
Amortization charge R Y
Closing net book amount FIREFE

At 31st March 2024 R-E-_NME=A=+—H

Cost P& NE] 312

Accumulated amortization and REHEEORAE

impairment (212)

Net book amount BREDFAE 100
Amortization methods and periods 1 8 07 1 AR
The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited useful life AEEBRTHHEERESFBHAES
using the straight-line method over the following periods: REAFH BREE -
Licenses 3 years FFRIHE3F

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024
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17

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2024 and
2023, all of which are held indirectly by the Company (except for
Mobicon (BVI) Limited which is held directly by the Company), are

17 FEHELAW
R-EBE-—_NER-_TE_ZF=ZA=+—
B FEWNBRAR(FTHARREERES
(‘1EMobicon (BVI) LimitedBR &b » ERANA &

as follows: HERA))FEBENAT
Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued share ~ Proportion of ownership interest
Name and kind of legal entity and place of operations capital/registered capital held by the Group
HRA ISR IERBR BRRA/ AR ERR
8 EERRER EELY EMERFE READL
2024 2023
“BCmE CTCoCF
APlus 2 Computer Limited ~ Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
limited liability company products and mobile accessories in
Hong Kong
REHERBRLA B8 BRAA REBETERERR LER1000ET
FREMNEEENH
APower Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$500,000 80%
limited liability company products, cosmetic products and
mabile accessories in Hong Kong
REREEBRAA B8 BRAA REBETERED {tHmk EBRH00,000E T
FREMEEENH
Mantech Electronics Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 61%
(Proprietary) Limited limited liability company components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa
BHAANE  BRAF REEENETRM ERIAR  ERRIOEHEH
EREEENH
MBM Properties Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 61%
(Proprietary) Limited limited liability company components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa
BHAANE  BRAF REEENETRM ERIAR  ERRIOEHEH
EREEENH
Mobicon (BVI] Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD10,000 100%
limited liability company
RERUES BRAF REREITRERR LRRI000ET

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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17  Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEMBAE =)
Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued share ~ Proportion of ownership interest
Name and kind of legal entity and place of operations capital/registered capital held by the Group
ERA ISR IERBR BRIRA/ e Jigss ) 4
£ EERREH EERY AMERGE BREAN
2024 2023
ZEoRE 3o
Mobicon (Taiwan) Limited  Republic of China, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary New Taiwan dollar 100%
limited liability company components, electrical components 5,000,000
and equipment in Taiwan
SEERNRAERAR  RERE FRAA WEEETETLN BETHR  EBRS00005TEE
BREERAH
Mobicon Electronic Trading ~ PRC, wholly-owned Trading and distribution of electronic  Registered capital 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited foreign enterprise components, electrical components — HKS2,000,000
(Note (i) and equipment in the PRC
ERMETESZ(RI) E - NEBERE KBTS TN ERTAR  ETARL000000ET
ARAR(FEE) BREERAH
Mobicon Holdings Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$10 100%
company components, electrical components
and equipment in Hong Kong
ERMETEEARRE &% BRAA REBETETRM ERTAR  BER0ET
BREERAH
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings ~British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1,000 61%
Limited limited liability company
EBRABE  ARLA REBEITRABR LBk 00ET
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary Singapore 100%
Pte Ltd. [imited liability company components, electrical components  dollar 300,000
and equipment in Singapore
MHRAE - BRAA REMRETEF M BATHER  ZHR00005MET
BREEENH
Mobicon-Remote Electronic ~ Malaysia, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Malaysian Ringgit 9%
Sdn. Bhd. [imited liability company components, electrical components 1,000,000
and equipment in Malaysia
BSRES  BRAF RERBBETSTM  ERTAR FRR1,000000
BREEENH SRATHER
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17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEMBAE )
Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued share ~ Proportion of ownership interest
Name and kind of legal entity and place of operations capital/registered capital held by the Group
ERA ISR IEXHBR BRIRA/ rEEFGHER
1 EERREN EENE AMERGFE BREAMM
2024 2023
ZEoPE —T-oc=F
Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited  Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary ZAR 100 55%
limited liability company components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa
BILNE - BRAF REEETET Rl ERTAR  BRRIO0EIER
EREERNH
Videocom Technology (HK] ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading of cosmetic products in Ordinary HK$2 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
WERL(ER)ERAT  BE ERAH REBETLARER ERRIET

Note: B 3E -

(i) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December (i) RIBEHETERTE - ZHBRE 2B
in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not FEKBEBRT-A=+—80 BEX%
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the B —H c NEBZEEHBRETD
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary BEZMNBARNBE-TS-_NFR=-F
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2024 and 2023. Z=F=ZA=t+—HILETZEAZH®

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the ERINHEERREAREORENRE

opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets ERTEVENARENBAR - EF

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the RE - B HREEOHBARNFE

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. GENRIBBNITK °

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time EMBRARNBE-_FT_MF=A

during the year ended 31st March 2024 (2023: Nil). =t ALEFEAEASHRBETAD

BOIZBEERN T _=F : |&) -

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEWBAW @)
The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned subsidiaries TRINEAEEES EARFERER 2
of the Group that has material non-controlling interests: FEREMBARZFS

Proportion of ownership

Place of incorporation and interests and voting rights held Profit attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries principal place of business by non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ML R mEERERSE AR
WELAER IRERBE RERRERELA FERERESERT EHE 2
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

ZE-mE —T-o-F ZECQmE —To-F ZBECME —F-=F
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T TEL T T T T

Mobicon-Mantech Holdings  South Africa 31731
Limited and its subsidiaries 73k
(“Mobicon-Mantech Group”)
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited
T 2K 2 3 ([ Mobicon-
Mantech £8 )
Individually immaterial 11,248 11416
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests
BEFERERNER
FEANBAR
49147
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with BEBAFZERERSZHE NG ZEH
material non-controlling interests BRlprE
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the T 3 & 51 /& X TMobicon-Mantech &£ & >~
subsidiaries, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling BB EHEEZE - Mobicon-Mantech(2E A A
interests that is material to the Group. HAREEMS BEA IEERREZ -
Summarized consolidated statement of financial position LA BITE
2024 2023
—ZE & e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Current B
Assets BE 83,126 92,174
Liabilities =N (29,550) (44,396)
Total net current assets mEEE R EAT 53,576 47,778
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17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

17 FEWBAW 2

Material non-controlling interests (continued) HOR Ik ¥ IO 45 (42)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with BEEEAXRHEZEREZZHBLTZHE
material non-controlling interests (continued) BREE(E)
Summarized statement of consolidated financial position e B AR EE (E)
(continued)
2024 2023
—EC_pN4g —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Non-current FERED
Assets BE 45,364 47,507
Liabilities aE (7,782) (11,088)
Total net non-current assets ERBEEFEERE 37,582 36,419
Net assets BEZFE 91,158 84,197
Summarized consolidated statement of profit or loss and other e Bm REME BN m R E
comprehensive income
2024 2023
—EomE —E_=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Revenue g 119,446 132,143
Profit before income tax [ BT 15 75 A 15,662 12,153
Income tax expense RS BiRx (4,346) (3,810)
Profit for the year F N F) 11,316 8,343
Other comprehensive expense Hih2mEMAx (3,671) (17,079)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for FREEWA () EE
the year (8,736)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ST IR ER 2 2
allocated to non-controlling interests WA (B )4a%E (3,407)

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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ABEEAFZREZ ZIE R A2 T

17  Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEMBAE =)
Material non-controlling interests (continued) HOR Ik e 45 (48)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (continued) BRE(E)
Summarized consolidated statement of cash flows el EnEXHE

2024
—E-NE
HK$'000
FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEECHERE
Cash generated from operations RERBEELE RS 11,662
Overseas income tax paid EAEINTIS (3,588)
Net cash generated from operating activities — & ¥FEELS 2R 4 HEE 8,074
Net cash used in investing activities BRETSHHAIREFH (988)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BEEES(BE)EEZ
activities BEF8E (5,318)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBREEEYIGINFEE
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FU7RERESEEY
the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExREH e
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F&BR& RIS ZEY

The information above is the amount before

eliminations.

18 Inventories

inter-company

18

tRERBELEEEAR

2% -
1+ 8

2024

—E-mE

HK$'000

Tl

Electronic components, electrical components

and equipment

Computer products and mobile accessaries

Cosmetic products

B BRTHR

(B

B A an M T AT

et

131,443
11,138
5,857

148,438

The reversal of impairment of inventories made in prior years arose
due to an increase in the estimated realizable value of certain
products as a result of a change in customer demand.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

2023

— =

HK$'000
TRT

20,701
(3,647)

17,054
(17,774)

4,066

3,346

2,188
(529)

5,005

AR ¥ 85 AT 2

2023
HK$'000
TR

146,153
12,320
7,466

165,939

REFEHNFERERD  TREF

ERHE -
AN -

SETERWMFTRERE
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19 Trade Receivables

19

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses,

presented based on due dates:

JRE W B 5 Bk

AEB—RBATERFZEEEEHHT
ZPATE - REBPHEY 2 RKE F K
K(ENBREEBEREE) RESTOT ¢

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 120 days
121 to 180 days
181 to 365 days

0&30H
31£60H
61290H
91E120H
1212180 H
1812365H

2024 2023
—E-mE =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
33,351

1,485

2,000

652

186

445

27,295 38,119

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as

security in respect of its trade receivables.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure

lifetime ECL allowance for all trade receivables.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the
Group's exposure to credit risk can be found in Note 3.1(b).

RBEEEHMARZEREERR SR
WE SRR ZATE BRAEERRER
BERZ  HEREIERFLEEES
Rk o AEEILEHEEKE SRR
B TAERRIERER -

AEBERERAEFEMHRELENEIERETH
BILOERAEMBREEZRRNEH
BEMEERERE -

FHEERKEZRIRERAEEREHN
EE R E BN (b)

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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20 Cash and Bank Balances 20

W& KT 4 B
2024 2023
—E-E ZEC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Cash at bank and in hand RITNRFHERS

-I!!I 30,434

Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount of
approximately HK$1,306,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,194,000)
was denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

21 Trade Payables 21
The aging analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date is as follows:

AEE IR S RIRTTHE#HEFE491,306,000
BIL(ZZE == : 1,194,000/ 7T) LA A
REFERFHRRATE A 2 RIE - &
BERZEUAREBEZEHRBINE
MiEzEEcEL TR AL - BIZAZH
B IR A8 4 60 SN BE B 15 3R K 8 01 B AR
MR o

JEE A} B 5 Wk
RERBHENZENESERERY
WaE

22

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

0 to 60 days ZE60H

61 to 120 days 61Z=120H
121 to 180 days 1212180H
181 to 365 days 1812365 H

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 to 90

days.

Loan From a Shareholder

22

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

2024 2023
—ENE —E_=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

12,860 21,437

529 5,478

780 1,732

1,034 1,585

15,203 30,232

KH—BBRZ B

FEREAELRRE SERARIENRE

= o
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23 Bank Borrowings 23

AT B

RITEN
HEBRELHETZ
RITE (KT EE()

Bank loans
Bank loans under supplier finance
arrangements (Note (i)

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings
are repayable

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years

—5FR

AL EERIEZERBEN

il —FE T EAMRE

Within a period of more than two years but not #2:@MEETBE A E
exceeding five years
Note: PREE -
(i) Bank loans under supplier finance arrangements (i)

The Group has entered into certain supplier finance arrangements with
banks. Under these arrangements, the banks pay suppliers the amounts
owed by the Group in advance of the original due dates by the suppliers.
The Group's obligations to suppliers are legally extinguished on settlement
by the relevant banks. The Group then settles with the banks within 90
days after settlement by the banks with interest ranges from 5.43% to
7.63% (2023: from 2.24% to 7.49%), which may be extended beyond the
original due dates of respective invoices. The interest rates are consistent
with the Group's short-term borrowing rates.

Taking into consideration of the nature and substance of the above
arrangements, the Group presents payables to the banks under these
arrangements as “bank borrowings” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In the consolidated statement of cash flows, repayments
to the banks are included within financing cash flows based on the nature
of the arrangements, and payments to the suppliers by the banks are
disclosed as non-cash transactions.

2024 2023

—E-E =4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT AT

34,210

15,414

49,624

2024 2023
—ENE ===

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

23,145 44,804

1,436 1,392

1,207 3,428

25,788 49,624

HEBREZFTHEN

AEERSHRITILE THEERE
THE e EZERHT RITEHEFR
TEEHAZA B AEEEREES
RIE - NEBYHERMETEMRBER
THEMNE - AR DRI - HEBAX
EBEMERTEMBIXARBITEN
FRNF543%E7.63%( T ==4F :
F224%%E7.49%) - AJERERBEZER
TFHHAZ% - MEXEAEECHEE
FE—5 o

EZRILATHOUEERANR - AEE
EHGAFBHRARREZERIRTEN
RITRB2FN K [RITEE] - REER
EREBRA - BERITHREDREL G
MHEAARERSR - MRTTREER
NHRBBEBERIRERS -

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH
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23 Bank Borrowings (continued) 23
Bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar I
Euro BrE
Singapore dollar o
South African Rand EEES kS

MiTEE )
IRITEBEUA TS EEEE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
18,824 39,413
3,041 3,704
- 591
3,923 5,916
25,788 49,624

The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings at the reporting
date range from approximately 3.08% to 12.4% (2023: 2.82% to
11.25%).

The Group’s certain banking facilities are secured by the leasehold
properties and freehold lands and buildings (Note 14), investment
properties (Note 15) of the Group and a personal guarantee given
by a non-controlling interest of certain subsidiaries.

24 Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities 24

Analysis of deferred tax liabilities as follows:

RMEBH  RITEBEZEBRANENT
#493.08% E124%( — T =45 : 282% =
11.25%) °

AEEETRIBMEDUAAEBR ZEE
YEMBE L1 RET (HF14) - KED
F(PHEE15) R & T B R AR IFHE R
st EAERIEER -

BRERIHE &AM

2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT

Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEBEE

ﬂ

170 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

For the year ended 31st March 2024 B = —ZE —NF = A =+—HILFE

24 Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (continued) 24 BEPEEEAEe)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the year EERBEEE (BE)RFRZEE
were as follows: T ¢
Right-of-use Lease
Inventories assets liabilities Others Total
#E (RAEEE  HESE Hith @t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TET THT FET TR TR
As at 1st April 2022 (audited) RZE-_%MA[—H
(&%) 1,490 - - 208 1,698
Adjustments (Note 2.1) AR (Mz21) - 167 (167) - -
As at Tst April 2022 (restated) R-ZT=—FmMA—H
(fmE5) 1,490 167 (167) 208 1,698
Exchange differences [EHER (246) (12) 12 (52) (298)
(Credited)/charged to GtANgaRER/
consolidated statement BiEABRRNR
of profit or loss (569) 195 (195) 369 (200

As at 31st March 2023 and R-B==%
1st April 2023 (restated) =ZA=t+-Ak
“E-=fWA-AH
(EE35)
Exchange differences ERER

(Credited]/charged to
consolidated statement
of profit or loss

(HABARER/
A5 A REEIR

As at 31st March 2024

25 Share Capital

25

Je AR

2024
—E-mE
HK$'000
Tl

200,000

Authorized: JERE

2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 2,000,000,0000% &A% & {£0.10
BT AR

Issued and fully paid: EEITRERE :

200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

200,000,000/% & AX EI50.10

BT B R

20,000

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH

2023

HK$"000
THETT

200,000

20,000
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 26

Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated
from operations:

B B U R R W

BRATEHANEN B EXBEL RS

R B

2024

—ECOF

Profit before income tax B FT1S B AR 71
Adjustments for: IATIER 2 #8%
— Amortization of intangible assets —EREAESH

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(FHREEENS

— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEWE BERZHE
plant and equipment Z (W) EE

— Interest income —F B A

— Interest expense —MERX

— Reversal of provision for impairment of — I ERERER D

slow-moving inventories
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables
— Reversal of provision for impairment of

trade receivables e d e
— Fair value gain on investment properties —REYMELNTFEWRE
Changes in working capital: BB A4 EE)
— Inventories —FE
— Trade receivables — BB SER

— Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

FEW IR
— Trade payables - ENESER
— Other payables and accruals

— Contract liabilities —&Ha’E

—WE - BEIRETE

— KB SRR ERE
— BN E ZRFRERE

—JANRIE - ReRHEM

—HibEN IR EER

Net cash generated from operations EEBEE 2R e R

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024

HK$°000
FRET

62

2,337
5,685

(26)
(718)
3,870

(4,279)
181

(867)
(58)

18,459
9,532

4,040
(13,993)
(5,277)
85

26,027

2023

HK$'000
TAT

9,230
51
1,460
1,782
(153)
4,327

(388)
674

(306)
(400)

1,922
14,837

(2,043)
(65)

7,531

(2,180)

48,285
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 26
Cash Flows (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities.

Ay Bl U B R W E ()
il 35 0 2 2 B R

TREJAEEREETDELCREBLZ
BHHEFE BRACKIRcED - @
BAPELEZRBERERNIENAKE
HERERERANDERMETDHZE

TREZAE-

Loan from Lease Bank
a shareholder liabilities  borrowings Total
RE—HK
BRRZER HERE RITER #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THERT THET

As at 1st April 2023
New lease entered
Financing cash flow
Cancellation of leases
Interest expense
Exchange differences

RZE-=FWA—H
HIE ik
BERERE
BUBTEE

FERAX

b 5 =58

31,000

8,000

8,954
3,342
(6,448)

(912)

445
(280)

(26,870)

49,624 89,578
= 3,342
(25,318)
= (912)
3,425 3,870
(391) (671)

As at 31st March 2024 R-B-_ME=A=1+—8 5101 25,788 69,889
As at Tst April 2022 RZE-__FWA—H 30,000 9,292 66,234 105,526
New lease entered HIVEiEkS) - 8,201 - 8,201
Financing cash flow MERERE 1,000 (8,524) (19,842) (27,366)
Interest expense FEFRX - 729 3,598 4,327
Exchange differences & o =5 - (744) (366) (1,110)
As at 31st March 2023 R-E-=HE=A=+—8 31,000 8,954 49,624 89,578
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

27 Operating Leasing Arrangements 27 REMEZRH
The Group as lessor A 52 [ 1 2t AN
As at 31st March 2024 and 2023, the Group have future minimum R-E-_NFER-_ZE_=F=A=+—
lease receivables under non-cancellable leases with third parties. B REANEEERE=FFIZ 2 TAHE
HIE  AEETNBHERKRKERS
FEMIFRIE -
2024 2023
—ETNFE —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Minimum operating lease payments EHE R GRIA -
receivable:
Within 1 year —FR 276
After 1 year but within 2 years —ERERER 138
414
Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by the KEHERKNRIBIERNEEREREY
Group for its investment properties. Lease periods are two years. FEW 2B - HEAHME -
28 Related Party Transactions 28 PBABIANLRSG
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the MRt Rk B A AR D PR BB & 4
Group had the following significant related party transactions AEBRERNGETATER@AE AL
during the year: R
(a)  Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a) AEELEPBH A LETZEALZHE
related parties are summarized below: BRaftan T -
2024 2023
—E-mE —EC=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PEE FET FH&T
Rental expenses to M-Bar Limited < FM-Bar Limited 2 # &
F (i), (v) 2,784
Sales to PC Supply Limited and its MEERERARIR
subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) HEfBAR([EEHN
EEDEE (ii) 165
Purchases from PC Supply Group WEEPEDMFE (ii) 1,265
Commission income received from EEEREEKEZ
PC Supply Group AN (iii) 8
Commission expense paid to PC EXNEEREEE
Supply Group akaArba (iii) 786
Management fee paid to PC Supply BEYNEEREE
Group EIRE (iv) 88
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

28
(a)

(b)

Related Party Transactions (continued)
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Commission income/expense received from PC Supply Group was
conducted in the normal course of business at terms as agreed between
the contracting parties.

Management fee paid to PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

The lease agreements entered into between M-Bar Limited and Mobicon
Holdings Limited constitute exempted continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. M-Bar Limited has agreed
to waive the rent during the year ended 31st March 2024.

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2024,
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately
HK$464,000 (2023: approximately HK$464,000).

Included in other payable of the Group as at 31st March 2024,
were rental expenses payable to M-Bar Limited of approximately
HK$2,320,000 (2023: approximately HK$3,016,000).

28
(a)

(b)

BN 22 5 @)

(%)
Mgk :

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

M-Bar Limited £ Mobicon Electronic Supplies
Company Limited Z 2 BB AR * ZA
ABEAARESREERFAREF L
(30%) - 15 8k 22 £(30%) - HEEL A
(20%) R 5 B RR S AL (20%) B B » &2
M-Bar Limiteda] 32 2 18 & {33 Ty iR aT 40 %
T35 ZAGFRETAL »

BEMBRARDHBEESBIKERR
ARI([BEBEME ) RERELZTHESR
99.99% % 0.01% % - EEEMIEHAR
RIEEREZRE AR EITI(30%) - 15
BUELZ 1(30%) ~ 22 55 A (20%) K 5 B
BREEQ%EEHS - BEATHEEE
TZHERRBR IR —REKBRE
RIZETHIE I 2 IGFETT -

BEEMERURMZAERAFXTY
R—REBBREPRITOS I BEZ &
FUER o

EXNEEREEZEREIR —RE
BBRTIRFTOETMEZFERZA ©

M-Bar Limited 2 & (R I &£ B A R A &R 3L
ZHERBER EMRABUAZRE
ZHERGFERBEZ S o M-Bar LimitedE
RERBEZE-_TE-_MF=A=+—A801t
FERRESE -

—EBE-NE=A=+—0  KA&EEH

1 & Uk 0B B 4R B S FM-Bar Limited 2 7
SIS HB400B T (ZE=_=F : §
464,000 7T) ©

R-ZE-WNE=ZF=+—8  KAEFH
fthy P& 15 5% 18 8L 45 FE {5 M-Bar Limited 2 78
HE 42320008 T (ZE==F : §
3,016,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

28 Related Party Transactions (continued) 28
(©) Included in other payables of the Group were amounts due to  (c¢)
minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of approximately

HK$7,460,000 (2023: approximately HK$7,899,000).

The amount of approximately HK$4,862,000 (2023: approximately
HK$5,230,000) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The remaining amount of approximately HK$2,598,000
(2023: approximately HK$2,669,000) are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable after one year.

(d) Key management compensation (d)

BN LR 52
AEEEMENREREESE THE
A AV ERE R FIBA)7,460,0008 0 (= F
T =4 : 497,899,000/ 7T ) °

ZEFIAH 48620008 T(Z B =4 :
#95,230,0008 70 ) BEERE - 2 ERIKRE
SKAEIE - 8rEEAI2,598,0008 T (=T ==
F : 492,669,000 ) AEEF - RER
R—EREE -

FEEM A B
2024 2023
—EEF —EC-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
in kind A
Employer’s contributions to defined
contribution scheme #Hx

o RRERHEGEY

BB mER MRS

Further details of directors” emoluments are included in Note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EEFMcE— PHBEANGEEM B R
RIEEI3 ©

29 Capital Commitments 29 BEARKIE
2024 2023
—EFE —F—=
Capital expenditure BEXRRX HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
— contracted but not provided for (Note) — B RTHIME R B85 (BT E) 417

Note:  This committed expenditure relates to buildings to be constructed on the
land purchased in South Africa.

30 Comparative Figures 30

Certain comparative figures are reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation.
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZFT—UF=H=1+—HILFE

31 Statement of Financial Position of the 31 A2 "l IR #E KA LT

Company and Movement of Reserves of the Z fil i 52 B)
Company
As at 31st March 2024 R_ZWME=ZH=1+—H
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ARz B EE
2024 2023
—EIMF —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current asset IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRAE ZIE 100,640 100,640
100,640 100,640
Current assets RBEE
Cash and bank balances e NIRRT 153 153
153 153
Total assets BEHAE 100,793 100,793
Current liabilities =R
Other payables and accruals Hith e 3B R s+ B 22 22
Amount due to a subsidiary FET— MY B A A5k IA 2,242 236
2,264 258
Net current liabilities REBEESE (2,111) (105)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABAERE 98,529 100,535
Net assets BERE 98,529 100,535
Capital and reserves attributable to RATFERIEE AEN
the equity holders of the Company R R #EE
Share capital k&N 20,000 20,000
Reserves i 78,529 80,535
Total equity AR 98,529 100,535
The statement of financial position of the Company were approved AARZHBHRRARENR T ZMFER
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 25th June AZ+hAEESEgEREETE
2024 and signed on its behalf by: WHTIIEERREFSESE
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
HBI%E BE
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
*TE BIEERITEARS,
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For the year ended 31st March 2024 i E —ZT—UF=H=+—HILFE

31 Statement of Financial Position of the 31 A2 "MK #E KA L

Company and Movement of Reserves of the Z 28 @)

Company (continued)

As at 31st March 2024 (continued) R-FNE=ZA=+T—H@#E)
(b))  Movement of reserves of the Company (b) ARE2FEE

Share  Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus loss Total
a8 BABER 2HEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET FET
(Note)
(BiE)
Balance at 1st April 2022 R-ZTE-ZFMA—H
KRR 16,706 67,097 (1,266) 82,537
Loss for the year EREE - - (2) (2)
Dividends i85\ - - (2,000 (2,000
Balance at 31st March 2023 R =-=%
“R=t+—Rz&# 16,706 67,097 (3,268) 80,535

Balance at 1st April 2023 RZZE-_=FMA—H

2% (3,268) 80,535
Loss for the year FREIE (6) (6)
Dividends BB (2,000) (2,000)

Balance at 31st March 2024 WA—-—_Z—m&

=A=t+—Hz&E 16,706 67,097 (5,274) 18,529
Representing: K&
2024 final dividend ZEEREKRE 1,000
QOthers Hitp (6,274)
(5,274)

Note:  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value Misk : BMABBRBAQRAMBITEBERZER
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value HRE-_ET-—FMONAT+NBETZE
of subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the ARBBDFENBARZEEFEY
reorganization which took place on 18th April 2001. EH e
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Financial Summary

S B 2L

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results
Revenue Wrzs
Profit before income tax BR PS8 AR A
Income tax expense FrSRiF
Profit/(loss) for the year FREH(EE)
Attributable to: TEHIAT RS
Equity holders of the Company AR AliEzEE A
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR

AEEBEREMBRFEZEAMEEREESR

BEHMEHEINLT

ES

As at 31st March

R=HE=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
SEBCNE T o=F T F —T-—F T -TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET &L FHETT FH&TT FHETT
340,579 410,421 501,269 456,369 461,245
6,394 9,230 27,436 20,539 1,565
(4,643) (3,961) (6,296) (1,950) (4,814)
1,751 5,269 21,140 18,589 (3,249)
(378) 13,211 12,151 (5,729)
5,647 7,929 6,438 2,480
5,269 21,140 18,589 (3,249)

BRAISERRLQE - —2-=/"F-NEEH

179



Financial Summary

HA B MR
Assets and Liabilities &E M AaE
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLFE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
TEoNE —EBE-=F —E-_F —FT-—F —FE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FABT FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE LR 48,623 51,811 39,316 29,107 27,314
Right-of-use assets FRHEEE 4,952 8,468 8,741 6,937 11,755
Intangible assets EEE 100 137 138 92 63
Investment properties REME 5,160 5,196 4,685 4,623 4,518
Goodwill R - - - - 171
Prepayments and deposits ENZERIRS 953 1,945 2,016 2,688 3,360
Current assets TENVEE 214,095 252,536 301,029 291,032 259,174
Total assets BEHAE 273,883 320,093 355,925 334,479 306,355
Current liabilities REBEE (99,452) (134,883) (162,695) (156,833) (158,383)
Net current assets FREEESE 114,643 117,653 138,334 134,199 100,791
Total assets less current BEAER

liahilities RBaE 174,431 185,210 193,230 177,646 147,972
Non-current liabilities ERFEE (7,783) (12,536) (5,061) (4,771) (6,488)
Net assets BEZEE 166,648 172,674 188,169 172,875 141,484

Capital and reserves AAAERFEA

attributable to the equity EEBRAR#EE
holders of the Company

Share capital N 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves " 93,025 103,527 117,279 105,155 86,284

113,025 123,527 137,279 125,155 106,284
Non-controlling interests R ER 53,623 49,147 50,890 47,720 35,200

Total equity ERAHE 166,648 172,674 188,169 172,875 141,484

180 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2023/2024



BE - BE - 8w

Hong Kong
China
Malaysia
South Africa
Singapore
Taiwan
Portugal

’ \ (HQ {53 %F' ﬁ étockgode \\1213)
"\‘-\ 2023/\(}¥1Annua| Report 48

moblcomcom \
: »

0 D%
L




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	集團架構
	財務摘要
	行政總裁報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層簡介
	企業管治報告書
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底



